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COMPANY PROFILE

Berger was established two centuries ago and now
it has grown to become one of the world's largest
paints manufacturer. The history of Berger Paints in
Pakistan is as old as the country itself. Berger
started its operations in Pakistan in 1950 and was
the first organized Paint Company to offer premium
products through imports from the United
Kingdom.

BERGER PAINTS PAKISTAN LTD. became a public
limited company in 1974, when 49.38% of its shares
were acquired by Pakistani investors, while the
remaining 50.62% were held by U.K. parent
company, Jenson & Nicholson Limited. Later
Slotrapid Limited registered in B.V.I with diversified
business interests, acquired control of Berger

Paints Pakistan Limited by gaining 52.0502%
shares ofthe company.

Berger established its first local manufacturing
facility in Karachi in 1955. As the country's
economic and industrial sector expanded the
demand for quality paints also grew and Berger
continued to make extensions in its product range
to meet these requirements.

In 2006, Berger established a state of the art

manufacturing facility in Lahore. With its head office
now located in Lahore, Berger caters to the
demands of its valued customers on a national
basis.

Consistent quality has always been Berger's trait.
This has been the driving force in making it the
leading brand name backed by premium quality
across Pakistan.
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Berger has the most comprehensive product range
for various paint market segments at different price
points. Berger has earned the admiration and trust
of customers by virtue of its superior technology,
product quality and a very high level of customized
services.

Berger over years has entered into a number of
technical collaboration arrangements with leading
international manufacturers. These include one of
the the largest paint company from Japan, which
enabled Berger to develop Automotive, Vehicle
Refinishes and Industrial Paints conforming to
international standards; a Japanese chemical
company, for Bumper Paints; PCS Powders,
Protech Oxyplast Belgium for Powder Coatings;
DPI Sendirian Berhad, Malaysia for Road & Runway
Markings and Cerachem for Construction
Chemicals. In 2011, Berger acquired the

distribution rights of DuPont Performance
Coatings, now Axalta Coating Systems - Cromax,
for Pakistan. In 2017, Berger also acquired
distribution rights of another brand from Axalta
Coatings by the name of Duxone for Pakistan.

Berger also operates a Resin manufacturing facility
at its Lahore factory. The resin plant has high
production capacity and has enabled Berger to
meet its entire resin needs for the manufacturing of
a wide range of quality paints. Berger was the first
paint company in Pakistan to have set up its own
resin production facility.

Berger has regional sales offices in Karachi,
Lahore, Islamabad and Multan. A large team of
sales personnel and a wide network of dealers and
distributors serve customers in all urban centers
across the country.




VISION & MISSION

Vision

We will become the leading paints and
associated products manufacturing and
marketing company in Pakistan ensuring best

returns to our investors & highest customer
satisfaction.

Mission

Innovation

We will lead by innovative ideas and
technological development in the paints
and associated products in Pakistan
ensuring efficient utilization of resources
yielding high returns.

Commitment

We will ensure the highest level of
commitment to achieve best quality
products and services.

Care

We will vigorously promote and
safeguard the interest of employees,
shareholders, business associates & all
other stakeholders.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We will act as a good corporate citizen
ensuring service towards the community
and shall focus on environment, health

and safety.
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A COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE

Berger is the most trusted name in quality paints, specialized coatings and allied products for household,
commercial and industrial sectors. The company has built this proud reputation by not compromising on
quality standards.

As an ISO-9001-2015 certified company, Berger continues to upgrade and improve its range by introducing
innovative products in line with consumer needs.

All products are tested at the company's own facilities before leaving the factory so that the highest quality
control standards are maintained at all times. The company also follows a continuous process of investment
in new equipment, such as computerized color matching technology, to ensure fast and accurate testing
results at all times.

An on-going training system is also in place so that the most rigorous testing methods and procedures can
be applied at the finished product stage.

A high standard of paints manufacturing is further ensured by using resin produced at Berger's own plant.
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CUSTOMER SERVICE

Berger is not just a paint company; it offers one window solution across different
paint product categories and business lines, in order to meet the demands of its
valued customers.

Thorough Berger's Color Advisory Service free color consultancy can be
accessed on UAN: 111-237-437 and Berger Helpline Number: 08000-2000. The
service is very popular among customers of decorative paints. It offers
professional advice on selection of appropriate color schemes and types of paints
that should be used on different surfaces and in different environments.

Berger offers professional services to its industrial customers through a highly
qualified and experienced Technical Services team. The team consists of highly
trained staff in industrial and protective coating products that are offered to
customers.The Technical Sales Officers make personal visits to address problems
that the customers may be facing and have the relevant paint coating modified or
adjusted according to the specific requirement.
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PEOPLE

At Berger, we consider PEOPLE as our most
precious resource. This belief is gaining
importance, leading to a more structured and
focused approach in developing Human

Resource as a competitive strength. Our ambition for
Our journey for excellence is amply sustainable growth is to

supported by developing a learning

organization with continuous capability be materialized with ngh‘[

building and skills enhancement. This is

supplemented by a wide range of employee kind people pOSSGSSing
engagement activities and programs which

are in-place for morale boosting, motivation best skills and unmatched

enhancement and inspiring commitment.

Specific skills are being developed through CompetenCieS COUpled
training and coaching in required areas. Wlth u nﬂ | nCh | ng

Across all layers in the organization, Berger is .

promoting a culture of acknowledging talent, comm |tment-
nurturing potential and encouraging

initiatives. We are maintaining an enabling

environment with fairness and equal

opportunity and freedom to perform and

excel.

Our ambition for sustainable growth is to be
materialized with the right kind of people
possessing best skills and unmatched
competencies coupled with unflinching
commitment.




“When ordinary people rise above
the expectations and seize the
opportunity those milestones truly
are reached.”

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

By the Grace of Almighty Allah and continued efforts of employees, we have reached a milestone of
achieving 4 MILLION SAFE MAN HOURS, without any LTI which has now become a stepping stone to grow
even stronger and safer. If God wills, with top management commitment and with continued efforts of all the
employees, within no time we would be able to double and triple the safe man hours and it's possible only.

Special focus is placed at Berger on protection of the environment as well as health and safety of employees,
customers and communities where it operates.

The company utilizes all available resources to pursue its EHS objectives by striving to attain economic
prosperity and ecological balance.

Berger manufacturing facility conforms to the international and national environmental standards where the
company is manufacturing environmental friendly products to minimize the potential effect on the people
and the environment.

A clean and pollution-free environment is ensured at the company's manufacturing facilities through a
Solvent Recovery Plant that recycles used solvent, a Dust/Vapor extraction system and a Xylene recovery
system.

Safety training programs are organized on a regular basis for all personnel, factory workers and vendors to
ensure safety of the work environment. Strict safety regulations for PPE's (Personal Protection Equipment)
and work procedures are enforced at every step.

In addition, safety officers conduct regular Safety Audits that identify and rectify any non-compliance and
enforce proper maintenance of safety procedures with active cooperation of all employees.
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QUALITY IN DIVERSITY

As an innovative and progressive paint company,
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited offers a wide range of
paints for diverse applications and uses. Berger's
proven product quality and relentless focus on meeting
customer needs in various specialized categories of
paints and allied products continues to drive its
success.

BUSINESS LINES

* Decorative Business

» Automotive Business

» General Industrial Finishes
» Powder Coatings

» Protective Coatings

* Vehicle Refinishes Business
» Road Safety

* Government & Marine

+ Construction Chemicals

» Adhesives
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DECORATIVE PAINTS

Berger Decorative Paints caters to interior, exterior wall surfaces & wood surfaces of residential, offices,
factories and commercial buildings with diverse range of colors in all product categories.

Continuous endeavors are made to achieve and maintain the high product standards that Berger is
renowned for. At the same time, innovative products that meet the needs of a demanding market are also
launched on a regular basis. Berger's decorative product portfolio consists of flagship products like, Silk
Emulsion, Elegance Matt Emulsion, VIP Super Gloss Enamel, VIP Matt Emulsion MaxPro, All Rounder Matt
Enamel, Weathercoat Glow 365, Weathercoat, WeatherPro and SPD Semi Plastic Emulsion.

Berger's Decorative business has achieved remarkable results in all product segments as it strives to keep in
touch with new trends and aligns its product range accordingly. This is complemented by pioneering new
marketing initiatives and strong focus on customer care.

Berger's decorative business also offers a wide range of colors through its tinting machines. These
machines have been set up in different metro cities under the product name of Color Bank.







Paints Pakistan Limited

POWDER COATINGS

Powder Coating is a unique segment of the paint business catering to the industrial manufacturing sector of
the country. It is an advanced and revolutionary method of applying a decorative or protective coating that
can be used by both Industrial and Retail Consumers. The powder used for the process is a mixture of finely
ground particles of pigment and resin, which is sprayed on a surface to be coated. The charged powder
particles adhere to the electrically grounded surface which are then heated and fused onto a smooth
surface. The coated surface is then reheated in a curing oven and the result is a uniform, high-quality,
attractive smooth finish.

Powder Coating is mainly used for application on the metal parts of domestic appliances like air-
conditioners, refrigerators, microwave ovens, water geysers, furniture, etc. and automotive parts like
radiators, hubcaps, filters, door handles, engine parts etc and also on aluminum profiles e.g. doors,
windows, light poles, guard rails, light fixtures, antennas etc.

Berger offers a wide variety of shades in Bercoat its flagship powder coating brand. These shades are
available in both Pure Polyester and Epoxy Polyester based systems. Customers can also get customized
shades developed if need be. These finishes vary from glossy to matt, texture, antique and are all available to
our customers as per their requirement.



GENERAL INDUSTRIAL FINISHES

The General Industry Paints Business caters mainly to the industrial manufacturing sector of the nation.
Berger supplies industrial finishes to leading makers of domestic electric & non-electric appliances, auto
spare-parts vendors, steel & metal product manufacturers, heavy industrial machine & transformer
manufacturers, metal furniture etc.

Boasting a wide range of industrial finishes Berger enjoys a significant market share in this segment of the
paint industry. Berger has a complete industrial paint system developed for its extensive customer network
spread all over the country. Finishes ranging from undercoats/primers to air drying enamels & varnishes,
high quality heat resistant stoving finishes & varnishes, roller coating paints & lacquers and epoxy based
finishes are all available. Each system has its unique characteristics designed to protect & safeguard
products from all types of internal & external environmental conditions.

Conforming to International ISO Quality standards Berger over years has established itself as a major
manufacturer of Industrial Finishes and is proud to be associated with names like Pak Fans, GFC Fans,
SSGC and Atlas Autos.

Committed to excellence Berger always has and will continue to provide its customers with industrial finishes
that are considered value for money and reliable.



wqid

18 | BERGER3JPAINTS - Ber?er Paints

0 I| g
= i - i

§

| i 0

\d

L]

- b
" r‘-.

PROTECTIVE COATINGS

The PROTECTON Division of Berger makes heavy duty Protective Coatings and Anti-Corrosive Paints for
specialized structures such as barrages, dams, industrial structures, pipelines, boilers, which are exposed
to hostile environmental elements.

Protective Coatings serve a dual purpose of protecting surfaces from chemical reactions as well as
improving visual appeal. These protective paints conform to international standards of quality and are
designed to resist the severity of extreme environmental as well as corrosive effects of atmosphere, and
other decaying agents.

They have excellent resisting properties against chemicals, marine environment, oil spillage and fresh and
saltwater. These coatings can be applied to concrete, cement render, asbestos sheeting, steel/concrete
pipelines, harbors, oil refineries, dams, barrages, chemical plants, battery rooms etc. and shore installations
with good durability.
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VEHICLE REFINISHES

Berger also offers technical expertise in the Vehicle Refinish business that offer touch-up paints precisely
matched with the original color of vehicles. This is achieved through different refinish systems designed to
enable application for high gloss, durable, quick drying and accurate color matching finishes without giving
heat treatment.

VITON car paint is one of the most popular market brand that was primarily introduced by Berger with
Nitrocellulose base. Itis based on international trends and offers a complete painting solution comprising of
putty, primer/surfacer, lacquer and thinners.

In 2011, Berger acquired the distribution rights of DuPont Performance Coatings, now Axalta Coating
Systems, for Pakistan. DuPont, now Cromax is the leading market brand of premium market segment with a
complete range of 2-K Finishes such as binders, tinters, primers, top coats, clear coats and hardeners along
with all types of thinners. The product range is made available at leading 3S dealerships, workshops and
retail markets.

In 2017, Berger also acquired distribution rights of another brand from Axalta Coatings by the name of
Duxone for Pakistan. Duxone is a brand for the economical tier of the Pakistani VR market. Duxone is a well
reputed brand with a complete range of tinters, binders, primers, top coats, clear coats, hardeners and
thinners.
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ROAD SAFETY

The motto of Berger Road Safety business is” Leading the Way to a Safe Journey'.

Berger Pioneered the concept of single source manufacturing and application of road marking products in
Pakistan. The advance Cataphos hot-melt Thermoplastic (TP) paint is manufactured in Pakistan as per BS
3262 specifications. A full range of other road marking products, including Chlorinated Rubber (CR) paint
and Water Based (WB) paint, are also manufactured to match various application standards.

In addition to road marking paints, Berger Road Safety offers a complete range of other road safety products
such as ftraffic signs, cat eyes/studs, guardrails, delineators and barriers etc. that meet high quality
standards.

All Application services are provided through our trained application teams that are supervised by qualified
field supervisors.
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GOVT. & MARINE

Berger stands tall amongst esteemed suppliers to the Government and its subordinate bodies, Armed
Forces, Aviation sector, Utility corporations, Ports and Shipping, Research and Development Organizations,
Educational Institutions and Health sector. It provides a vast variety of products and services ranging from
the architectural coatings to highly specialized products.

As Pakistan is endowed with a long coastal belt, it needs reliable protection for its sea-bound crafts as well as
off-shore and on-shore installations. Berger's Government & Marine business meets this need with a wide
range of products comprising specialized coatings for ships, air craft's, fuel storage stands, warehouses,
arms and ammunition depots, etc.




- Berger Paints Pakistan Limi
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ADHESIVES

The flagship brand of Berger's Adhesives business is Berlith and NUIith. It is white glue with a base of plastic
resin combined with high concentration, bonding strength and excellent application qualities. Used both, in
the wood furniture and sports goods industries, the high adhesion strength of Berlith and NUIith, is ideal for
gluing hardboard, chipboard, softwood, ply, Formica, etc.

Because of its strong plastic resin base, Berlith and NUIith are the best choice for use in kitchen cabinets and
counters. They also serve as a suitable pasting glue for labels on plastic, glass, cartons, etc.
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MARKETING ACTIVITIES
BERGER AD CAMPAIGN

Berger Paints carried out a major TVC and a strong and effective Social Media campaign last year. While
launching a new product in the Exterior Emulsion Category by the name “WEATHERCOAT GLOW 365”

TVC & Radio Campaign: The new TVC campaign of Weathercoat Glow 365advertised on satellite and
Radio channels (News, Drama, and Music channels) and regional entertainment channels. The ads were
aired during evening prime time and morning shows. A successful digital media campaign was also
launched along with the release of WEATHERCOAT GLOW 365 TVC campaign on major social & digital
media apps like Instagram, Facebook, Twitter & YouTube.

TVC Airing: TVCs was aired in the following
channels:

* ARY Digital

* GeoNews

e HUMTV

* DunyaNews

* ARYNews

* Express News

* AVTKhyber

* GeoEntertainment
* 92New

* CityFM89

* FM91

* FM106.2

WERTHERGORT

Cl1LOW 365

gilane gased Acrylic Exlerior 'l'l'lll.fnn
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WALL PAINTING

Carrying on the tradition of beautification of cities, Berger Paints is conducted wall painting activities in
different cities of Pakistan. Berger Paints collaborated with “l am Karachi” and “Mama Parsi Girls School” to
improve the aesthetics of the Karachi city. | AM KARACHI (IAK) in collaboration with Berger Paints held an
event at Mama Parsi Girls School to talk about women empowerment and the importance of educating
women. Mama Parsi Girls School boundary walls were painted with Berger Paints which conveyed a strong
message by painting themes on Women Empowerment and role of Women Education in our society.
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LDA 14™ AUGUST CELEBRATIONS

Berger Paints joined hands with LDA (Lahore Development Authority) to decorate their LDA Complex
building to celebrate the spirit of Independence Day. The LDA office building was illuminated with
ornamental lights, Quaid - e - Azam, Allama Igbal and Fatima Jinnah portraits and Pakistan flag which
attracted alarge number of people.

LAHORE Z00 BRANDING

Berger Paints re-initiated the movement and joined hands with Lahore Zoo Authority to effectuate the
beautification of Lahore Zoo. Entrance boards were installed and branded to bring life and beautify the
entrance for general public. To make this project a success, Berger Paints again fulfilled their commitment
and showed the spirit for making the rehabilitation work successful.

Also Lahore Zoo monkey cages were brought to life by painting monkey cages.

Berger Paints branding boards were installed on all four sides of the cages to make this project more
attractive.
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MAGAZINE ADVERTISEMENT

Berger Paints remained actively engaged in advertising in various consumer and architectural magazines
throughout the fiscal year 2021-22.

RESCUE 1122 BRANDING

Rescue 1122 has rescued millions of emergency victims through its Emergency Ambulance, Rescue & Fire
services and Community Emergency Response Teams. Berger Paints collaborated, by sponsoring branded
boards, with “Rescue 1122” to improve the aesthetics of the Rescue Building at Manga Mandi.

Moreover, these branded boards not just enhance the beauty of the rescue building but also being used as a
medium to educate the locals about professional management of emergencies such as road traffic crashes,
medical emergencies, building collapse, fire, hazardous material incidents, explosions, flood & water rescue
and animal rescue etc.

© COMMUNITY

RESCUE STA
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BERGER CONTRACTOR & DEALERS CONVENTIONS
AND PAINTER PARTIES

Berger Paints organized Contractors Conventions in the main cities of Pakistan namely: Karachi, Lahore,
Islamabad, D.I. Khan and other major cities. These conventions provide a huge platform for Berger's staff to
interact with the painters and contractors and provide them with information about the company and its
products. Moreover, gifts were distributed through lucky draws followed by dinner. These events were a
huge success as a large number of painters and contractors participated in them and truly enjoyed the
events.

BERGER SOCIETY BRANDING

Societies in major cities of Pakistan were branded by Berger i
Paints. New sign boards and direction boards were installed - i
by Marketing Department. i J.I

speed Breaker
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WEBSITE REVAMP

Berger paint revamped its website last year. The improved website is aesthetically more appealing, mobile
friendly and is designed to provide user with updated and dedicated content. The SEO perspective was
given due importance while designing hence getting decent ranking through search engine.

HEMEET | PR T ==l - ECETATE | Fh T —_ =

BEAGERI PAINTS

BERGER XPRESS VISUALIZER PK

Marketing department launched a new mobile app
“Berger Xpress Visualizer PK” through Google play
store. This app was designed to help user visualize
interior and exterior surface with their own selection of
colors. The app introduced features of making
selection of colors from different product categories

and calculation of paint quantity based on the area HE [ |

and dimension provided by user.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Berger actively advertised and posted
different posts regarding Berger's
products and social events on Berger's
official Facebook, YouTube, Instagram
and twitter accounts during the whole
fiscal year to create the 360-degree
effect which resulted in an Integrated
Marketing Communication message for
the consumers.
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Alhamdulillah!

We proudly announce that BERGER has successfully concluded the privately placed
Rated, Secured Diminishing Musharkah Sukuk Issue of

PKR

500

MILLION

Mandated Lead Advisors & Arrangers

{_F""‘ BankIslami 53;&)

NVESTHIENT BGENT LEGaL COUmSE EHARIAM STRUC TURMNG AND

WCCOUNTS BANK

PAK OMAN \ A BankIslami $4%)



INVESTOR RELATIONS

REGISTERED OFFICE

36 Industrial Estate, Kot
Lakhpat, Lahore.

Tel: 92 42 111 237 437
Fax: 92 42 35151549

SHARE REGISTRAR

M/s Corplink Private Limited,
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial
Block K Model Town, Lahore,
Punjab 54000

T: +92 42 35916714-19

F: +92 42 35869037

LISTING ON STOCK
EXCHANGES

Ordinary shares of Berger
Paints Pakistan Limited are
listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

STOCK CODE / SYMBOL

The stock code / symbol for
trading in ordinary shares of
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
at Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited is BERG.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Company
has complied with all applicable
provisions, filed all
returns/forms and furnished all
the relevant particulars as
required under the Companies
Act, 2017 and allied rules, the
Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Regulations and the listing
requirements.

CASH DIVIDEND

Cash Dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2022 at Rs.4.00
per share i.e., 40%. This is in
addition to interim dividends
already paid at Rs. 0 per shares
i.e. 0%.

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

Share Transfer Books will
remain closed from October 20,
2022 to October 26, 2022, both
days inclusive.
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DIVIDEND REMITTANCE

Ordinary dividend declared and
approved at the Annual General
Meeting will be paid within the
statutory time limit of 45 days.

() For shares held in physical
form: to shareholders
whose names appear in the
Register of Members of the
Company after entertaining
all requests for transfer of
shares lodged with the
Company on or before the
book closure date.

(i) For shares held in electronic
from: to shareholders
whose names appear in the
statement of beneficial
ownership furnished by
CDC as at end of business
on book closure date.

Fundamental knowledge and

understanding of financial market is crucial
for the general public and lack of financial
literacy or capability makes them vulnerable
to frauds. SECP recognizes the importance
of investor education and therefore initiated
this investor education program, called
‘JamaPunji', an investor training program, to
promote financial literacy in Pakistan.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

WITHHOLDING OF TAX &
ZAKAT ON ORDINARY
DIVIDEND

As per the provisions of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
income tax is deductible at
source by the Company at
prescribed rates wherever
applicable.

Zakat is also deductible at
source from the ordinary
dividend at the rate of 2.5% of
the face value of the share,
other than corporate holders or
individuals who have provided
an undertaking for non-
deduction.

GENERAL MEETINGS &
VOTING RIGHTS

Pursuant to section 132 of The
Companies Act 2017, BPPL
holds a General Meeting of
shareholders at least once a
year. Every shareholder has a
right to attend the General
Meeting. The notice of such
meeting is sent to all the
shareholders at least 21 days
before the meeting and also
advertised in at least one
English and one Urdu
newspaper having circulation in
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad.

Shareholders having holding of
at least 10% of voting rights
may also apply to the Board of
Directors to call for meeting of
shareholders, and if the Board
does not take action on such
application within 21 days, the
shareholders may themselves
call the meeting.

All ordinary shares issued by
the Company carry equal voting
rights, Generally, matters at the
general meetings are decided
by a show of hands in the first
instance. Voting by show of

hands operates on the principle
of “One Member-One Vote”. If
majority of shareholders raise
their hands in favor of a
particular resolution, it is taken
as passed, unless a poll is
demanded.

Since the fundamental voting
principle in the Company is
“One Share-One Vote”, voting
takes place by a poll, if
demanded. On a poll being
taken, the decision arrived by
poll is final, overruling any
decision taken on a show of
hands.

INVESTOR’S GRIEVANCES

To date none of the investors or
shareholders has filed any
significant complaint against
any service provided by the
Company to its shareholders.

PROXIES

Pursuant to Section 137 of The
Companies Act, 2017 and
according to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of
the Company, every
shareholder of the Company
who is entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the
Company can appoint another
member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote instead of
him/her. Every notice calling a
general meeting of the
Company contains a statement
that a shareholder entitled to
appoint a proxy.

The instrument appointing a
proxy (duly signed by the
shareholder appointing that
proxy) should be deposited at
the office of the Company not
less than forty-eight hours
before the meeting.

WEB PRESENCE

Updated information regarding
the Company can be accessed
at its website,
www.berger.com.pk. The
website contains the latest
financial results of the Company
together with the Company’s
profile.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rupees in thousand

Year Ended June 30,

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
NET ASSETS
Fixed Assets 1,628,184 1,635,006 1,639,574 1,179,841 1,231,583 1,146,921
Goodwill - - 24,000 24,000 32,263 36,750
Long Term Investments 70,915 52,505 52,037 54,504 67,287 74,568
Long Term Loans & Deposits 76,770 70,566 81,849 65,833 120,244 111,703
Deferred Taxation - 29,093 - 43,878 - 1,859
Net Current Assets 923,707 667,445 533,742 455,897 289,841 314,084
Total 2,699,576 2,454,615 2,331,202 1,823,953 1,741,218 1,685,885
FINANCED BY
Share Capital 204,597 204,597 204,597 204,597 181,864 181,864
Reserves 1,310,842 1,171,720 973,326 903,660 828,666 724,418
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 830,273 849,056 877,100 472,012 509,131 521,363
2,345,712 2,225,373 2,055,023 1,580,269 1,519,661 1,427,645
Long Term and Deferred Liabilities 353,864 229,242 276,179 243,684 221,557 258,240
Total 2,699,576 2,454,615 2,331,202 1,823,953 1,741,218 1,685,885

TURNOVER AND PROFITS

Turnover 7,073,478 5,602,160 4,177,951 5,120,444 5,453,221 5,122,570
Gross Profit 1,222,010 1,116,560 876,334 1,116,423 1,190,648 1,489,961

17.28% 19.93% 20.98% 21.80% 21.83% 29.09%
Profit/(Loss) before tax 247,018 267,046 114,532 112,998 147,212 265,931
Taxation 45,132 (71,825) 40,224 12,173 45,106 63,820
Profit/(Loss) after tax 201,886 195,221 74,308 100,825 102,106 202,111

EARNING AND DIVIDENDS

Earning/(Loss) per share 9.87 9.54 3.63 4.93 4.99 11.11
Interim Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) = - - - - 4.50
Final Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) 4.00 4.00 1.00 1.00 1.25 -
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

It is my pleasure to submit this review report to the stakeholders of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (the
"Company") on the overall performance of the Board of Directors and its effectiveness in achieving the
Company's set objectives. To build an effective governance model, risk management and control
environment, the Board has implemented several policies through the Company's management.

The Board of Directors has its three sub-committees:
1. Audit Committee

2. Human Resources Committee

3. Committee for Business Strategies

These committees assisted the Board of Directors effectively for the performance of its required duties.
These sub-committees met regularly and reported to the Board as set out in the Code of Corporate
Governance 2019. The Board met several times during the year. The Board Committees greatly facilitated
the overall working of the Board.

An annual evaluation of and by the Board was conducted once a year, in accordance with the code of
Corporate Governance to ensure that the overall performance of the Board was in line with the developed
comprehensive criteria. During the year under review, the Board played an effective role in providing
guidance to the Company, to achieve sustainable operational and financial results.

The Board of Directors frequently interact with the management team, visit the factory premises, meeting
both the internal auditors and external auditors and so to take timely decisions at its Board and sub-
committee meetings

Management is responsible for executing day-to-day business activities in line with objectives set by the
Board. The Board endeavors to put in place business continuity plans to deal with the present challenging
environment, so to ensure safety and well-being of employees and other stakeholders. The Board of
Directors will continue to play its role in setting the direction of the Company, supporting execution of plans
while adhering to the principles of good corporate governance.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to acknowledge the contribution of management, all our employees,
customers, our vendors and our valued shareholders for their trust, continued support and commitment to
the Company along with our other stakeholders.

Mr. Magbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Chairman

Date: 28 September 2022
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

ECONOMY OF PAKISTAN

Though Pakistan survived from the COVID-19 crisis, it faced the daunting tasks in FY2022 such as controlling
fiscal deficit, curtailing current account deficit, managing pressure on exchange rate along with achieving a
sustainable economic revival. Rupee devaluation: this single factor has left businesses in a challenging
situation where importers are facing significant difficulties in procurement of raw material through imports.

In early 2022, the Russian-Ukraine conflict elevated global commodity prices which also fueled domestic
market inflation. Threats from high inflation, rising interest rates, lingering supply constraints, and mounting
uncertainties have badly affected the financial performance of most of the companies. The ongoing Political
instability in the country has further affected the situation.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Given the situation mentioned above, your company managed to achieve net Sales for the year at Rs. 7,073
million as compared to Rs. 5,602 million in last year, up by 26% mainly due to increase in sales volumes by
8% which is reflected inimproved gross profit as well.

Selling, Marketing and Administrative expenses were Rs. 869 million compared to Rs. 711 million of the
previous year, after inflationary impact.

Financial cost increased by Rs.46 million mainly due to drastic increase in State bank policy rate as
compared to previous year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Thefinancial position is summarized as follows:

30 June 30 June

Rupees in thousand 2022 2021
Operating Profit 304,335 293,224
Other income 106,160 91,580

410,495 384,804
Finance cost (163,477) (117,758)
Profit before taxation 247,018 267,046
Taxation (45,132) (71,825)
Profit after taxation 201,886 195,221

Future Outlook

In the Year to come, stability in value of Rupee against US dollar and international commaodity prices will have
an important bearing on the inflation trajectory. The resumption of the IMF program has provided a solid
base for economic take off should the expected private and official foreign exchange inflow keep Pakistan's
position stable. The effects of the political instability, along with the massive natural flood calamity in recent
days has further aggravated the in-country situation and could affect a broad-based recovery of the
economy into the near future.
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Although macroeconomic environment could improve gradually, cost reduction, cash flow generation and
market execution remain as key operating priorities. With motivated sales team, the Company is well
positioned to compete with unorganized sector, keeping market share intact and keep adding value to its
stakeholder's wealth.

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIORNMENT (HSE)

Safety and well-being of workers has been utmost priority of BERGER PAINTS and like all the world class
companies we believe to have excellent safety record. To provide a safer and healthier environment for its
workers is our moral, ethical and legal responsibility.

The Company demonstrated its firm commitment to HSE with 6.1 million safe hours so far. To give a clean
and ecofriendly environment, the Company has installed one megawatt solar power project for its
consumption which has green impact on community all around.

We have recently installed latest sprinkler systems in all required areas replacing old ones. All HSE related
equipment are frequently tested and verified throughout the year. In order to improve the emergency
evacuation and response of firefighting team members at plant regular firefighting drills were conducted
through continuous training of the team.

These developments are a clear demonstration of the Company's resolve to maintain health and safety as a
core priority.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT -ERM

The Board of Directors has approved Company's risk management policy. The Board of Directors also
provides guidelines on strategic matters and organizational objectives. The business units are responsible
for managing risks at operational level. However, the company — level risk management is the responsibility
ofthe risk management function (RMF).

RMF reports its results/ findings/ observations to the Board Audit Committee. The committee regularly
reviews the business risk profiles, risk management policy, risk assessment procedures, related counter
strategies and advise on future actions. The Board of Directors authorized the audit committee to supervise
overall risk management process of the company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance was as follows:

Mr. Magbool H. H. Rahimtoola’ 4
Dr. Mahmood Ahmad

Mr. Tariq Ikram

Mr. Shahzad M. Hussain

Mr. Zafar A. Osmani

Mr. Mohammad Saeed

Ms. Zareen Aziz

Mr. Zahid Majeed (Alternate to Mr. llyas Sharif)

N N T

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who were unable to attend meetings.

All relevant other information has already been disclosed in Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and note 40 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

For the year ended 30 June 2022
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors and has three independent directors. The
Chairman of the Audit Committees (BAC), Mr. Tariq Ikram is an independent director. The members of BAC
possess significant economic, financial and business acumen related to the affairs of the Company.

The BAC has effectively implemented the internal control framework through an in-house internal audit
function. The Company's system of internal controls has been designed to safeguard assets of the Company
and to strengthen controls which is continually evaluated for effectiveness and adequacy.

The BAC has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance and timely financial reporting objectives,
and shareholders wealth through effective financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management at all levels within the Company.

During the year the audit committee of the board held 4 meetings.
HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The members of HR possess significant acumen related to human resources affairs of the Company and in
general. Chairman of the HR committee is Mr. Zafar Aziz Osmani who is an independent director.

During the year this Committee met formally twice. Some of the key challenges addressed and managed
included special planning and steps taken for employee's management under COVID- 19 situation, at the
Berger factory and all other offices during the unusual circumstances.

HRC also evaluated the management of the high potential employees from each department and suggested
development of the career path, while also reviewed the employee engagement activities which included
Women Day celebration, Birthdays, Employee of the Month, Top Sales Performer etc. This sub-committee
also reviewed the Company values dissemination process.

COMMITTEE FOR BUSINESS STRATEGY
In these difficult times the Board formed a Business Strategies Sub Committee that met two times
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements of the Company include accounts of its subsidiaries, Berger DPI (Private)
Limited, Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited.

HOLDING COMPANY

The holding company of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited is Messrs. Slotrapid Limited which is incorporated in
the B.V.I.

PROFIT PER SHARE
The Earnings per share forthe yearis Rs. 9.87 (2021: Rs.9.54).
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has announced 40% final cash dividend i.e Rs. 4 per share for the
year ended June 30, 2022 subject to approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
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AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the
upcoming Annual General Meeting and Auditors for the year 2022-23 will be appointed in Annual General
Meeting.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are reviewed and approved by the Board. The Board approved the
pricing policy for related party transactions.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange in their listing
regulations relevant for the year ended June 30, 2022 were duly complied with. A statement to this effect is
attached with the report.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2022 and its disclosure, as required by the Code of Corporate
Governance appears on Page 45.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as required by
the listing regulations. Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the following:

i.  The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017. These statements present fairly the Company's state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

i. The principal business activity of the Company is manufacturing, marketing and distribution of
decorative and industrial paints and other related products.

iii. Properbooks of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

iv. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements which conform to the International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan.

v. Theaccounting estimates, wherever required are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

vi. International financial reporting standard, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
offinancial statements.

vii. The system ofinternal controlis sound in design and has been effectively implemented.
viii. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

ix. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
the Listing Regulations.

X. Thekey operating and financial data of the last six years is annexed.

xi. Thevalue of investments of provident, gratuity and pension funds are at June 30, 2022:
Rupees in Thousand

Berger Paints Executive Staff Pension Fund 59,471
Berger Paints Gratuity Fund 28,267
Berger Paints Provident Fund 266,194
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Xii. The directors, CEO, Executives and their Spouses and minor children did not carry out any trading in
the shares ofthe Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) - ACTIVITIES

Berger believes and fully understands its social responsibilities which strengthen the bond between the
Company and the society. Berger is pleased to share an environment friendly initiative of using left over
paint waste and to convert it into usable form which is then donated to schools in the underprivileged areas,
in mosques and churches. Berger's campaign under “Truck Art -Child Finder” through Roshni Helpline aims
to help find missing children. This initiative was recognized on several global platforms and won 2 silver and
3 bronze trophies.

We understand that there are many needy people among us who are deprived of healthy food which is a
fundamental right of every human being. Berger is also participating in community by providing food
prepared at Berger plant for its employees and by regularly sharing surplus food with needy children at
mosque situated near our factory premises.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, our stakeholders and valued customers for
their continued trust as indeed your Company appreciates the dedication demonstrated by all tiers of the
Company employees.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lahore Dr. Mahmood Ahmad Mr. Magbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Date: 28 September 2022 Chief Executive Director
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as on 30 June 2022

No. of Shareholders Total Shares Held
456 1 100 13,580
551 101 500 197,276
367 501 1,000 317,010
457 1,001 5,000 1,103,240

71 5,001 10,000 521,485
29 10,001 15,000 348,971
10 15,001 20,000 177,548
9 20,001 25,000 211,720
5 25,001 30,000 137,721
3 30,001 35,000 95,500
2 35,001 40,000 77,625
2 40,001 45,000 85,750
2 50,001 55,000 107,762
1 65,001 70,000 65,500
2 70,001 75,000 144,509
1 75,001 80,000 76,000
4 85,001 90,000 358,120
1 90,001 95,000 91,125
1 110,001 115,000 112,500
1 135,001 140,000 137,457
1 175,001 180,000 179,063
1 205,001 210,000 207,556
1 215,001 220,000 218,575
1 250,001 255,000 251,550
1 285,001 290,000 290,000
2 295,001 300,000 594,854
1 390,001 395,000 394,260
1 400,001 405,000 403,107
1 425,001 430,000 426,701
1 525,001 530,000 526,969
1 930,001 935,000 935,000
1 1,000,001 1,005,000 1,002,331
1 10,645,001 10,650,000 10,649,314

1,989 20,459,679
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as on 30 June 2022

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDER AS OF 30-06-2022

Particulars Shares Held Percentage
Directors, CEO and their spouse and minor children 1,776 0.01%
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties (Parent Company) 10,856,870 53.06%
NIT & ICP 297,029 1.45%
Banks, DFI & NBFC 290,175 1.42%
Insurance Companies 584,125 2.86%
Modarbas and Mutual Funds 39,625 0.19%
General Public (Local) 7,681,884 37.55%
General Public (Foreign) 124,000 0.61%
Others 584,195 2.86%
Company Total 20,459,679 100.00%
Categories of Shareholders Required under the code of
Corporate Governance as at June 30, 2022
DIRECTORS THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREN:
DR. MAHMOOD AHMED 2 0.00%
MR. MUHAMMAD ILYAS 1 0.00%
MR. ZAFAR AZIZ OSMANI 1 0.00%
MR. MAQBOOL H. H. RAHIMTOOLA (CDC) 1,768 0.01%
MR. MOHAMMAD SAEED 1 0.00%
MR. SHAHZAD MUMTAZ HUSSAIN 1 0.00%
MISS ZARINE AZIZ 1 0.00%
MR. TARIQ IKRAM 1 0.00%
1,776 0.01%
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:
SLOTRAPID LIMITED (CDC) 10,649,314 52.05%
SIKANDER (PVT) LIMITED (CDC) 207,556 1.01%
10,856,870 53.06%
NIT & ICP:
M/S INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 663 0.00%
M/S. NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN TURSTEE DEPARTMENT 1,012 0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 295,354 1.44%
297,029 1.45%
BANKS, DFI AND NBFC 290,175 1.42%
INSURANCE COMPANIES 584,125 2.86%
MODARBAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 39,625 0.19%
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 7,681,884 37.55%
GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 124,000 0.61%
OTHERS 584,195 2.86%
9,304,004 45.47%
20,459,679 100.00%
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 72™ Annual General Meeting of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited will be held

at 36-Indutrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore, and / or virtually via video-link/Zoom Cloud meetings on

Wednesday October 26,2022 at 10:00 am. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm minutes of Annual General Meeting held on October 27, 2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company along with consolidated
Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with the Auditors' Report, Chairman's Review and
Directors' Report thereon.

3. Toappoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023 and fix their remuneration.

4. To approve the announced dividend in Cash @ 40% i.e. Rs. 4.00 per share of Rs. 10 each for the year
2022 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

5. To consider any other business, that may be placed before the members with the permission of the
chair.

Special Business:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass a special resolution pursuant to section 199 of the Companies Act 2017
with or without any modifications, additions, deletions to otherwise company to subscribe in right shares of

company's associated concern 3S Pharma (Pvt) Ltd amounting to the tune of Rs. 29.40 million.

By Order of the Board

Lahore: October 05, 2022

Registered Office Nauman Afzal
36- Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat Lahore. Company Secretary
Notes:

1)  The Share Transfer Books will remain closed from October 20, 2022 to October 26, 2022, both days
inclusive and the final dividend will be paid to the Members whose name will appear in the Register of
Members on October 19, 2022. Members (Non-CDC) are requested to promptly notify the Company's
Registrar on any change in their addresses and submit, if applicable to them, the non-deduction of
Zakat Form CZ-50 with Registrar of the Company M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial Block K, Model Town, Lahore, Punjab, 54000. All Members holding the shares through the
CDC are requested to please update their addresses and Zakat status with their Participations.

2)  Amember entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy to
attend and vote for him/ her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. A proxy must be a member
ofthe Company.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CDC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1, dated the
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Attendance of AGM Through Video-Link

The entitled shareholders whose name appear in the Books of Company by the close of business in
October 19, 2022 who are interested to attend AGM through online platform are hereby requested to
get themselves registered with the Company Secretary office by providing the following details at the
earliest but not later than 48 hours before the time of AGM at legal@berger.com.pk.

Name of Shareholders CNIC No. Folio No. / CDS Cell Number Email Address
No.

Upon the receipt of above information from interested shareholders, the Company will send the login
details at their email addresses. The Company will convene the meeting through “Zoom Cloud
Meetings” which can be downloaded from Google Play or App Store. Our shareholders are therefore
requested to download the application ahead of the meeting. On the AGM day, shareholders will be
able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through smart phones or Computer devices from
any convenientlocation.

The login facility will be opened 30 minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join
meeting after identification and verification process.

The entitled shareholders (whose name appeared in the books of Company by the close of Business
on October 19, 2022 along with the details mentioned above may send their comments/suggestions
forthe proposed agenda items at the above email address at least 48 hours before the meeting.

Electronic Notice of AGM

The company has been dispatching the notice of AGM to all the members through post to their
registered address. In addition, the Notice along with the proxy form is available on Company website
www.berger.com.pk. and has been sent to the PSX via the PUCARS system. In the event of any
difficulty in accessing the Notice or proxy form, members can contact the Company via email at
legal@berger.com.pk. the Company will send a copy of the Notice and proxy form via e-mail only to
those members who place a request in writing and have provided their e-mail addresses to the Share
Registrar of the Company, Corplink (Private) Limited.

For Attending the Meeting:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
authenticate their identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card(“CNIC”)
ororiginal passport atthe time of attending the meeting through video-link.

ii. In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.
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For Appointing proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC Regulations
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

i. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers

shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form to
Company.

Submission of copies of CNIC and NTN Certificate (Mandatory).

Pursuant to the directives of the SECP, the dividend of shareholders whose CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in
case of corporate entities), are not available with the Share Registrar shall be withheld.
Shareholders are therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC/SNIC (if not already
provided) to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial Block KModel Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000.

Withholding Tax on Dividend
Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019 has made certain amendments in Section 150

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:

(@) For filers of income tax returns: 15%

(b) For non filers of income tax returns: 30%

Shareholders, who arefilers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active
Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they
shall be treated as non-filers and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30%
instead of 15%.

Withholding Tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding
ratio of the Joint Account Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal
Shareholder) for deduction of withholding tax on dividends of the Company, shareholders are
requested to furnish the shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their
Joint Holders, to the Company's Share Registrar ,in writing as per format given below enabling the
Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly.



50 | BERGER3PAINTS - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Company Folio/CDS Total

Name Account No. Shares Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s)
Shareholding Shareholding
Name & . Name & )
CNIC No. proportion CNIC No. proportion

(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it
will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 (“ACT”) provides that any dividend
declared by a listed company shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank
account designated by the entitled shareholders. SECP has advised in their Circular No. 18 of 2017
dated August 01, 2017 to all listed companies to ensure that with effect from November 01, 2017 as
also provided in the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 (as amended from
time to time) cash dividends shall be paid through electronic mode only. Therefore, shareholders
are requested to provide the details of their bank mandate specifying: (a) title of account, (b)
account number (c) IBAN (d) bank name and (e) branch name, code and address to the Company
or Share Registrar. Those shareholders who hold shares with participants / Central Depository
Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant / CDC.
Please note that as per Section 243(3) of the Act, listed companies are entitled to withhold payment
of dividend, if necessary information is not provided by shareholders. For the convenience of
shareholders e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company's website.

E-Voting

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143-
145 ofthe Act and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

Video Conference

Pursuant to SECP Circular No.10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if the Company receives consent
from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location
to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of Annual
General Meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to
availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please provide the following information to
the Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model
Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000.

I/We, of being a member of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per
Register Folio No. hereby opt for video conference facility at (Please insert name of the
City).

Unclaimed Dividend

Shareholders who have not claimed their dividend are advised to contact our Share Registrar to
collect /enquire about their unclaimed dividend, if any. As per the provisions of Section 244 of the
Act, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company which have remained
unclaimed/unpaid for a period of three years from the date on which it was due and payable, are
required to be deposited with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the credit of
Federal Government after issuance of notices to the Shareholders to file their claim. The details of
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the shares issued and dividend declared by the Company which have remained due for more than
three years are available on the Company's website http://www.berger.com.pk. Shareholders are
requested to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged promptly. In
case no claim is lodged, the Company shall proceed to deposit the unclaimed/unpaid amount and
shares with the Federal Government pursuant to the provision of Section 244(2) of the Act.

Transmission of Financial Statements and notice through email.

Shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual
General Meeting through email. Shareholders of Company are requested to give their consent to
prescribed format placed on the Company's website www.berger.com.pk to our share Registrar
M/S Corplink (Private) Limited at Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K, Model Town, Lahore,
Punjab, 54000 to update our record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and
Notice of Annual General Meeting through email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for
hard copy of the Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provide free of cost within seven
(07) days of receipt of request
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

2.

10.

11.

Thetotal number of directors are eight as per the following:

Male Seven

Female One

The composition of the board is as follows:

Category No. Name

i) Independent Directors 4 Mr. Tariq Ikram

Mr. Zafar Aziz Osmani

Mr. Mohammad Saeed

Ms. Zareen Aziz (Female Director

i) Non-Executive Directors 3 Mr. Magbool H. H. Rahimtoola
Mr. Shehzad M. Hussain
Mr. llyas Sharif

iii) Executive Director 1 Dr. Mahmood Ahmad

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad being CEQ is deemed director of the Company

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

All directors have minimum 14 years of education and 15 years' experience on the board of listed
Company hence exempt from directors training program (DTP).

During the year, there was no appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

12. TheBoard has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a). Audit Committee
Mr. Tariq Ikram Chairman
Mr. Magbool H. H. Rahimtoola Member
Ms. Zareen Aziz Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Zafar A. Osmani Chairman
Dr. Mahmood Ahmed Member
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member
c) Committee for Business Strategies
Mr. Tariq Ikram Chairman
Mr. Zafar Aziz Osmani Member
Mr. Zahid Majid Member

13. The terms of the reference of the aforesaid committees have been developed by the Board,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The Board has provided adequate resources and authority to enable the Audit Committee to carry out
its responsibilities effectively.

15.  Secretary of Audit Committee circulated minutes of meetings of the audit committee to all members,
directors, and head of internal audit and to chief financial officer, when required, and prior to the next
meeting of the Board.

16. Thefrequency of the meetings of the committees were as following:

BOD Committee Frequency

Audit Committee Four meetings
HR and Remuneration Committee Two meetings
Committee for Business Strategies Two meetings

17. The Board has set up an effective audit function and the staff is suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.
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The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the
audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the
company;

The Board has recommended appointment of external auditors for a year and such recommendations
included in the Directors' Report.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

Company has ensured that the statement of compliance is reviewed and certified by statutory auditors
as per relevant Regulations specified by Commission.

We confirmed that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

Mr. Magbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Chairman



58 | BERGER3PAINTS - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BERGER PAINTS PAKISTAN LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED
IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Berger Paints
Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

\
A ,, A
) 6-\/\N,
A.F.Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Lahore

Date: October 5,2022
UDIN: CR202210092YmChTMi30



Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Revenue recognition Our audit procedures in relation to the matter,

(Refer note 30 to the annexed financial amongst others, included thefollowing:

statements) - understood and evaluated management
controls over revenue and checked their

The Company is principally engaged in validation:

the production and sale of paints,
varnishes and other related items inthe | « performed verification of sales with underlying
local and export markets. documentation including dispatch documents

. and salesinvoices;
Revenue from sale of goods is

recognised when the performance | ¢ tested on a sample basis, specific revenue

obligation is satisfied by transferring transactions recorded before and after the
control of promised goods to the reporting date with underlying documentation to
customers. assess whether revenue has been recognized in

the correct period;
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Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in our audit

We consider revenue recognition as a | - verified that sales prices are approved by the
key audit matter due to revenue being appropriate authority;

one of the key performance indicators of
the Company. Revenue for the year has
increased significantly as compared to
the last year. In addition, revenue was | < performed analytical procedures to analyse
also considered as an area of an variation in the price and quantity sold during the
inherent risk of material misstatement year;

and_3|gn|flcant audit risk as part of the | tested journal entries relating to revenue recognised
audit process. during the year based on identified risk criteria; and

» tested on a sample basis, specific discounts as
per Company's policy;

- assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in the
financial statements related to revenue.

Information Other than the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the separate and consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.



62 | BERGER3PAINTS - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

ted Waorldwid

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX0f2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive

income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited by another firm of
Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated October 7, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion
thereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Hammad Ali Ahmad.

\
A
A.F.Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Lahore

Date: October 5, 2022
UDIN: AR2022100929ev4PjTqg
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Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2022

2022 2021
ASSETS Note (Rupees in thousand)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 1,628,161 1,634,795
Intangible assets 7 23 211
Long term investments 8 70,915 52,505
Long term loans 9 38,632 34,147
Long term deposits and prepayments 10 38,138 36,419
Deferred taxation - net 11 - 29,093
1,775,869 1,787,170
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 22,735 18,491
Stock in trade 12 1,625,411 1,225,895
Trade debts - unsecured 13 1,628,302 1,219,678
Loans and advances 14 221,950 277,245
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 15 26,821 31,676
Other receivables 16 113,633 184,323
Tax refund due from Government 17 172,815 192,661
Short term investment 18 140,000 30,000
Cash and bank balances 19 223,671 44,476
4,175,338 3,224,445
5,951,207 5,011,615
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorised share capital 250,000 250,000
Share capital and reserves
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 204,597 204,597
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 830,273 849,056
Other reserves 58,017 45,304
21 888,290 894,360
Revenue reserves
General reserve 285,000 285,000
Accumulated profits 967,825 841,416
21 1,252,825 1,126,416
Total equity 2,345,712 2,225,373
Non-current liabilities
Long term financing - secured 22 183,222 152,498
Long term diminishing musharaka 23 16,000 -
Deferred grant 24 2,251 1,155
Long term employee benefits 25 144,012 75,589
Deferred taxation - net 11 8,379 -
353,864 229,242
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26 1,756,458 1,569,174
Current portion of deferred income 1,379 2,407
Current portion of long term financing 67,731 107,884
Unclaimed dividend 6,826 7,551
Accrued markup 27 45,298 22,479
Short term borrowings - secured 28 1,373,939 847,505
3,251,631 2,557,000
3,605,495 2,786,242
Contingencies and commitments 29
5,951,207 5,011,615
The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Revenue from contract with customers - net 30 7,073,478 5,602,160
Cost of sales 31 (5,851,468) (4,485,600)
Gross profit 1,222,010 1,116,560
Selling and distribution expenses 32 (677,395) (538,891)
Administrative and general expenses 33 (191,950) (172,057)
Impairment loss reversed / (recorded) during the year 3,074 (61,923)
Other operating expenses 34 (51,404) (50,465)

(917,675) (823,336)
Profit from operations 304,335 293,224
Other income 35 106,160 91,580

410,495 384,804
Finance cost 36 (163,477) (117,758)
Profit before taxation 247,018 267,046
Taxation 37 (45,132) (71,825)
Profit after taxation 201,886 195,221
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 38 9.87 9.54
The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended June 30, 2022

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Profit after taxation Ll EED 195,221

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss ) i

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI 18,410 4,761

Related deferred tax liability on Fair value gain on investment

classified as FVOCI SHEET) i
12,713 4,761

Actuarial loss on staff retirement benefits (12,421) 9,172)

Total comprehensive income for the year 202,178 190,810

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 247,018 267,046
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.1.5 132,584 134,793

Amortization on intangible assets 7141 188 1,305

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35 (4,560) (4,640)

Provision (reversed)/charged against slow moving stock - net (17,486) 28,227

Impairment loss (reversed) / recorded during the year (3,074) 61,923

Provision for long term employee benefit 22,229 20,107

Finance cost 36 163,477 117,758

Impairment on investment in associate o 4,293

Impairment on goodwill o 24,000

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 34 13,137 13,772

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 34 5,659 8,400

Amortization of deferred grant 35 3,030 (6,595)

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan 35 (11,681) (11,581)

303,503 391,762
Operating profit before working capital changes 550,521 658,808
Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (4,244) (4,898)

Stock-in-trade (382,030) (168,189)

Trade debts - unsecured (408,624) (231,784)

Loans and advances 53,537 (89,512)

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 4,056 2,362

Other receivables 72,130 (87,955)

(665,175) (579,976)
Increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables 191,021 693,450
Cash generated from operations 76,367 772,282
Finance cost paid (140,298) (125,589)
Taxation - net (2,934) (90,878)
Long term employee benefit paid (21,227) (92,217)
Funds transferred to the Company from the Gratuity fund 55,000 -
Worker's Profit Participation Fund paid (13,470) (15,216)
Long term loans disbursed - net (2,124) (19,524)
Long term deposits realised / (paid) - net 2,109 (878)

(122,944) (344,302)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (46,577) 427,980
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure incurred (128,201) (133,349)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,809 8,585
Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan 9,753 9,748
Short term investments made during the year - 2,195
Net cash used in investing activities (111,639) (112,821)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term financing - net (12,459) (87,676)
Proceeds from long term diminishing musharaka 16,000 -
Dividend paid (82,564) (19,596)
Proceeds / (repayments) short term borrowings - net 194,852 (81,276)
Net cash generated from from financing activities 115,829 (188,548)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (42,387) 126,611
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (742,329) (868,940)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 39 (784,716) (742,329)
The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Reserves
Capital Revenue
Revaluation
Issued, surplus on
subscribed property,
and paid-up plant and Share Fair value General Accumulated Total
capital equipment premium reserve reserve profits reserves Total
(Rupees in thousand)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2021
Balance as at July 01, 2020 204,597 877,100 34,086 6,457 285,000 647,783 1,850,426 2,055,023
Profit after taxation for the year - - - - - 195,221 195,221 195,221
Other comprehensive income for the year
- Fair value loss on Investment classified as FVOCI - - - 4,761 - - 4,761 4,761
- Actuarial gain on staff retirement benefits - - - - - 9,172) (9,172) (9,172)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4,761 - 186,049 190,810 190,810
Transfer of incremental depreciation
from revaluation surplus on property,
plant and machinery - net of tax - (28,044) - - - 28,044 - -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Final cash dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2020 @ Rs. 1 - - - - - (20,460) (20,460) (20,460)
- (28,044) - - - 7,584 (20,460) (20,460)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 204,597 849,056 34,086 11,218 285,000 841,416 2,020,776 2,225,373
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2022
Profit after taxation for the year - - - - - 201,886 201,886 201,886
Other comprehensive income for the year
- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI - - - 12,713 - - 12,713 12,713
- Actuarial loss on staff retirement benefits - - - - - (12,421) (12,421) (12,421)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 12,713 - 189,465 202,178 202,178
Transfer of incremental depreciation
from revaluation surplus on property,
plant and machinery - net of tax - (18,783) - - - 18,783 - -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Final cash dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2021 @ Rs. 4 - - - - - (81,839) (81,839) (81,839)
- (18,783) - - - (63,056) (81,839) (81,839)
Balance as at June 30, 2022 204,597 830,273 34,086 23,931 285,000 967,825 2,141,115 2,345,712

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive

Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1 Reporting entity information

1.1

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as a Private
Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was subsequently
converted into a Public Limited Company. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). The
principle business activity of the Company is manufacturing and trading of paints, varnishes and other
related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the Holding Company. The aggregate
percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered office of the Company is situated at 36-Industrial Estate, Kot-
Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is located at 28-KM Multan Road, Lahore.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units including production facilities
areasunder:

-Head office: 36 Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore

-Factory: 28-KM, Multan Road, Lahore

-Regional office: X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi

-Regional office: Plot No. 201, Street # 1, Sector |- 10/3, Islamabad

-Regional office: 174/A Lodhi Colony, MRE, Opposite Hascol Petrol Pump MDA Road, Multan

2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

21

2.2

Separate financial statements

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiary and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct cost of investment less identified
impairment, if any rather than on the basis of reported results and net assets of the investees. Consolidated
financial statements of the Company are prepared separately.

The Company has following investments:

Country of Percentages

Company name incorporation of shareholdin Nature of business

Subsidiaries

Berger DPI (Private) Limited Pakistan 51.00% Execution of contracts relating
to application of road marking
paints and installation of road
safety equipment

Associate

3S Pharmaceuticals Pakistan 49.00% Manufacturing of medicines

(Private) Limited
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;
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- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:
- measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value;

- the measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts;

- recognition of employee retirement benefits at present value; and

- certainforeign currency translation adjustments.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became effective
during the year but are not relevant

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company’s annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2021. However, these do
not have any significantimpact on the Company’s financial statements.

Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company’s annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2021. However, these do
not have any significantimpact on the Company’s financial statements.

Effective Date

Standard or interpretation (Annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use — January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 16
Cost of Fulfilling an Onerous Contracts — Amendments to IAS 37 January 01, 2022
Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 January 01, 2022
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 January 01, 2024
Amended by Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 January 01, 2023
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — January 01, 2023

Amendment to IAS 12

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of changes laid down by these standards on its
financial statements.
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In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have
also been issued by the IASB in previous years. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2022 and January 01, 2023 respectively. The Company expects
that such improvements to the standards will not have any significant impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

4.1

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery, which
are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, non refundable duties and taxes
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
or construction.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the
revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment account except for a reversal of deficit already charged
to statement of profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except for a deficit directly
offsetting a previous surplus, in which case the deficit is taken to revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to the extent of the annual incremental
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred annually directly to
accumulated profit net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is adjusted to the revalued
amount of the assets.

Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to
accumulated profits. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment account are
net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to profit or loss using the
straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life.
Residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation is significant.

Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the
assets and other similar factors.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset is
put to use while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month preceding the disposal.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized as an income or expense in statement of profit or loss.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Right-of-use asset and Lease liability

At inception of a lease contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions.

The Company applies a practical expedient and, does not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, if any. The
lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the
leaseterm.
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For lease contracts other than the aforementioned, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicitin the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate and
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments
oranindex or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-to-use
asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-to-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight
line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents expenditure
incurred on property, plant and equipment during the construction and installation. Cost also includes
applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant property, plant and equipment category as and
when assets are available for use as intended.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to determine whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss currently except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is recognized
directly against any revaluation surplus for the related asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not
exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus for the same asset.

Intangible assets

Intangibles are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The cost
of intangible comprises of its purchase price including non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade
discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to acquisition. Cost incurred after the
asset is in the condition necessary for it to operate in the manner intended by management are recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

Computer software

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss.

Amortization on assets with finite useful life is charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line basis so as
to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on addition is charged from the
month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which
the assetis disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as specified in note 7.
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4.2.2 Goodwill acquired in business combinations

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Company.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Subsequent to
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairmentloss, if any.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Company has significant influence are measured at
costlessimpairment, if any, in the Company’s separate financial statements.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS-27 'Separate Financial Statements'. Investments in
associates, in the consolidated financial statements, are accounted for using equity method in accordance
with IAS-28 'Investment in Associates'.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identified impairment except for items in transit,
which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred. ltems considered obsolete are carried at nil
value. General stores and spare parts are charged to statement of profit or loss. The Company reviews the
carrying amount of stores on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in
usage pattern and physical form of related stores.

Stockintrade
Stockintrade is valued at lower of cost and Net Realizable Value (NRV).

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and valuation has been determined as follows:

Raw materials, packing materials and semi-processed goods Moving weighted average cost

Finished goods Moving weighted average
manufacturing cost

Finished goods purchased for resale Moving weighted average cost

Stockin transit Invoice value plus other charges

paid thereon up to the reporting date

NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is based on management's estimate and is recognised
in financial statements whenever necessary.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at
fair value of consideration receivable. An impairment allowance i.e. expected credit loss is calculated based
on actual credit loss experience over the past years. The Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating Expected Credit Loss (ECL). The Company has established a provision matrix thatis based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. The Company recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The impairment allowance is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. These assets are written off
whenthere is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of short- term running finance, cash and balances and investments
with maturities of three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insigni[Jcant risk of changesin
fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of
cash flows.
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Financial instruments
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

- Thoseto be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
through profitor loss (FVTPL); and

- Thosetobe measured atamortized cost.

The classification depends upon entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The following assessments are made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
initial application:

- Thedetermination of business model within which a financial asset is held; and

- The designation of certain financial assets with respect to subsequent measurement either through profit
orloss or other comprehensive income.

Afinancial assetis measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
- itis held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding.

Adebtinvestmentis measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

Allfinancial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:
i) Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including an interest / markup
ordividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange
gains, losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

iii) Debtinvestments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in statement of comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to statement of profit or loss.
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Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized in statement of profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost;

- debtinvestments measured at FVOCI

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

Additional information about how the company measures allowance for impairment is detailed in note 45.1.3
ofthefinancial statements.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expired. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the
carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and itintends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually forimpairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”).
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The Company’s corporate assets generally do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication
that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment loss recognized in prior periods is assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates that are used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed
periodically and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company and are disclosed when inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets
are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:

- thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or to be received from the sale of goods, net
of sales tax, sales return and related discounts. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with customer. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of the goods. The
customers obtain control when the goods are delivered to them and have been accepted at their premises
except for exports where control is transferred at the time of dispatch Invoices are generated at that point in
time. The Company's customer arrangements contain a single performance obligation to transfer
manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in
equity.

Currenttax

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and
exemptions, if any.
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The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made
in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. Under / over paid amount
of currenttaxis recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / to the Government.

The Company takes into account the currentincome tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognized for;

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax assetin
full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations under normal short-term credit terms. These are measured at the
undiscounted amount of cash to be paid.

Employee benefits

4.17.1 Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a presentlegal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as aresult of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

4.17.2 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates the following defined benefit schemes:

a) Anapproved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and

b) Anapproved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.
Pension scheme

The Company offers pension benefits to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as two percent of
the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

Gratuity scheme

The Company offers gratuity benefits to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to employees
having service in the Company for minimum five years. The gratuity benefits provided by the Company is
calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of service and gratuity factor.
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Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes are
based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, is recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the
interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments.
Interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in profit or loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

The actual return on plan assets represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the
beginning of the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments for contributions made by the Company
as reduced by benefits paid during the year.

4.17.3 Defined contribution plan

Provident fund

The Company also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of ten percent of
basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

4.17.4 Other long term benefits - Accumulated compensated absences

The Company also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the
rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences are
earned. Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are
accumulated subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at the
time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of an
employee is ignored while determining benefit obligations.

The Company uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of
its accumulated compensated absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to profit or loss. The
amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the profit or loss immediately in the year when these
occur.

4.17.5 Other employee benefits

4.18

4.19

4.20

The Company employees are offered interest free long term loans for purchase of vehicles. The term of loan
ranges for a period of 3-10 years. Deductions are made from salaries as per agreed repayment schedule.
The loan amount is required to be repaid immediately as the employment contract ceases on termination or
resignation of the employees. The loans are secured against title of vehicles. These loans have been
discounted at market rate.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the
exchange rate at the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end, exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to income. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the date of the initial transaction.

Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
whichthese are approved.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that
would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax
effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
useorsale.

Investmentincome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Government grants

The Company recognises benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a government
grant provided there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and Company will comply with
all attached conditions. The benefit of loan at below market rate of interest is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The
benefit is generally accounted for and presented as deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20 as a separate
line item in statement of financial position. Subsequently, the grant is recognised in statement of profit or loss
as otherincome, on a systematic basis over the periods in which the expenses for which the grant is intended
to compensate.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significantto Company's financial statements are:

Note
- Stock in trade 45
- Trade debts - unsecured 4.6
- Impairment of cash generating unit 4.9
- Recoverability of deferred tax assets 415
- Long term employee benefits 417
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 6.1 1,423,908 1,428,792
Right-of-use-asset 6.2 190,071 191,636
Capital work in progress 6.3 14,182 14,367

1,628,161 1,634,795
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Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revalued assets would have been as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Freehold land 207,183 207,183
Leasehold land 3,475 -
Buildings on freehold land 116,407 123,324
Buildings on leasehold land 48,126 54,177
Plant and machinery 121,994 72,659
497,185 457,343

The forced sale value of revalued assets as per latest available revaluation reports are as follows:

Particulars Date of revaluation (Rupees in
thousand)
Freehold land June 30, 2020 569,458
Leasehold land June 30, 2020 167,166
Building on freehold land June 30, 2020 220,291
Building on leasehold land June 30, 2020 21,622
Plant and machinery June 30, 2020 193,457

Particulars ofimmovable fixed assets

Freehold lands of the Company are located at 28-Km, Multan Road, Lahore, measuring 92.80 Kanals and
36.10 kanals and Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore, measuring 4.04 Kanals.

Leasehold land of the Company is located at Sector I-10/3, Industrial Area, Islamabad, measuring 5.56
Kanals.

Buildings, plant and machinery and other immovable fixed assets of the Company are constructed on above
mentioned freehold land and leasehold land.

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 31 98,442 103,130
Selling and distribution expenses 32 22,308 20,753
Administrative and general expenses 33 11,834 10,910
132,584 134,793

The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use is Rs. 81.04 million (2021: Rs. 83.94 million).
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

6.2 Right-of-use-asset

Opening net book value 191,636 197,805
Additions during the year 3,475 -

Depreciation charge for the year (5,040) (6,169)
Closing net book value 190,071 191,636

The Company has a lease contract of its warehouse. Lease liability against the right-of-use asset has been
paid off at the start of the contract.

2022 2021
6.3 Capital work in progress Note (Rupees in thousand)
Civil works 228 -
Plant and machinery 399 3,288
Electrical installations 555 1,423
Advances to suppliers 13,000 9,656
14,182 14,367
7 Intangible assets
Computer software 71 23 211
Goodwill 7.2 - -
23 211

71 Computer software

This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning

software.

2022 2021
Cost Note (Rupees in thousand)
As at July 01 33,410 33,410
Additions during the year - -
As at June 30 33,410 33,410
Accumulated amortization
As at July 01 33,199 31,894
Amortization during the year 711 188 1,305
As at June 30 33,387 33,199
Balance as at June 30 23 211

Rate of amortization 33.33% 33.33%
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

7.1.1 The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Administrative and general expenses 188 1,305
188 1,305
7.2 Goodwill - 24,000

Accumulated impairment

Accumulated impairment as at July 01 - -
Impairment charged during the year - (24,000)
Accumulated Impairment as at June 30 - (24,000)

Balance as at June 30 = -

All goodwill recognised at the time of acquisiton of Powder Coating Business was impaired as at June 30,

2021.
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8 Long term investments
In equity instruments - at cost 8.1 37,457 37,457
Investment in equity instrument classified as FVOCI 8.2 33,458 15,048
70,915 52,505
8.1 In equity instruments - at cost
2022 2021

No. of shares - ordina Name of the Compan Percentage
v pany 9 (Rupees in thousand)

(i) Subsidiary Company - unlisted
2022 2021

765,000 765,000 Berger DPI (Private) Limited 51.00% 2,550 2,550
The face value of these shares is Rs. 10 each

(ii) Associated Company - unlisted

98,000 98,000 3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited 49.00% 34,907 39,200

Less: Impairment recognised
during the year

- (4,293)
34,907 34,907
37,457 37,457

The face value of these shares is Rs. 100 each.
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The recoverable amount of investment in associate was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated
using adjusted net asset method. Following the impairment loss in prior year, the recoverable amount of the
investment was equal to its carrying amount.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8.2  Investment in equity instrument classified as FVOCI
Buxly Paints Limited - listed
Cost 3,830 3,830
Fair value adjustment 8.2.1 29,628 11,218
33,458 15,048
The Company owns 273,600 (2021: 273,600) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 19.00%
(2021: 19.00%) investment of total shares in Buxly Paints Limited. As at year end, the market value of each
sharewas Rs. 122.29 (2021: Rs. 55).
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8.2.1 Fair value adjustment
As at July 01 11,218 6,457
Fair value gain 18,410 4,761
As at June 30 29,628 11,218
9 Longterm loans
Opening balance 67,577 48,053
Disbursements during the year 24,378 44,119
Repayments during the year (22,254) (24,595)
69,701 67,577
Discounting adjustment for recognition at fair value
- deferred employee benefits 10 (17,377) (17,666)
Closing balance 52,324 49,911
Current portion shown under current assets 14 (13,692) (15,764)
38,632 34,147

9.1

9.2

These represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Company in accordance with the terms
of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles. These loans are secured by
keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of the Company till final settlement. The loans are
recoverable over a period of three to ten years. These loans have been discounted using market rate as at
reporting date and the corresponding discounting impact has been recognised as prepaid employee
benefits.

Directors of the Company were not given any loan during the year.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Long term deposits and prepayments
Deposits - unsecured
- Considered good 20,761 18,753
- Considered doubtful 852 4,969
21,613 23,722
Prepaid employee benefits 9 17,377 17,666
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits 10.1 (852) (4,969)
10.2 38,138 36,419
10.1 Movement in allowance for doubtful deposits is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 4,969 4,969
Reversal during the year (4,117) -
Balance as at June 30 852 4,969
10.2 These include deposits given to utility companies, deposits against lease and tender deposits.
2022 2021

Deferred taxation - net

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary
differences arising in respect of

(Rupees in thousand)

- Accelerated tax depreciation (16,672) (26,820)

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (85,257) (80,370)

- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI (5,697) -

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary

differences arising in respect of:

- Impairment allowance on financial assets 61,426 74,785

- Investment in related parties 1,328 1,217

- Intangibles 5 254

- Minimum turnover tax 23,328 43,020

- Provision for slow moving stock 13,160 17,007
99,247 136,283
(8,379) 29,093
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
11.1  Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
As at July 01 29,093 (15,453)
Recognized in profit or loss:
- Accelerated tax depreciation including
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 5,012 16,325
- (Reversal) / Charge of impairment allowance
on financial assets (13,359) 17,957
- Minimum turnover tax (19,692) 1,020
- Investment in related parties 111 1,217
- Provision for slow moving stock (3,847) 8,027
(31,775) 44,546
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI (5,697) -
As at June 30 (8,379) 29,093
12 Stock in trade
Raw and packing materials
-in hand 711,306 591,035
- in transit 319,267 151,184
1,030,573 742,219
Semi processed goods 162,191 80,946
Finished goods
- Manufactured 12.1 501,776 465,057
- Trading 57,399 81,687
559,175 546,744

1,751,939 1,369,909

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks 12.2
- Raw material (47,850) (51,589)
- Semi processed goods (4,137) (4,471)
- Finished goods (74,541) (87,954)

(126,528) (144,014)

1,625,411 1,225,895

12.1 Aggregate stocks with a cost of Rs. 69.71 million (2021: Rs. 89.91 million) are being valued at net realizable
value of Rs. 61.34 million (2021: Rs. 77.26 million).
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2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

144,014 115,787
Provision made during the year 15,502 29,247
Reversal during the year (22,668) (1,020)
Write off during the year (10,320) -
As at year end 126,528 144,014

12.3 The cost of stock in trade recognised as an expense amounted to Rs. 5,151.53 million (2021: Rs. 3,795.18

million).
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Trade debts - unsecured
Considered good
Related parties 13.1 & 13.2 227,651 180,417
Others 1,539,239 1,126,801
1,766,890 1,307,218
Considered doubtful
Related parties 15,835 41,498
Others 139,117 175,464
1,921,842 1,524,180
Impairment allowance on trade debts 13.3 (154,952) (216,962)
Provision for discounts (138,588) (87,540)
1,628,302 1,219,678
13.1 Trade debts include the following amounts due
from the following related parties:
Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party 13.1.1 209,511 139,998
Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - subsidiary
of Berger DPI (Private) Limited 13.1.2 33,975 81,840
Dadex Eternit Limited - related party 13.1.3 - 7
13.1.4 243,486 221,915

13.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

211.90 million (2021: Rs. 152.51 million).

13.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

92.14 million (2021: 95.69 million).

13.1.3 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was nil

(2021: Rs. 0.30 million).

13.1.4 The Company has recognized impairment allowance on these balances as at June 30, 2022 amounting to

Rs. 15.84 million (2021: Rs. 41.50 million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
13.2 Aging of related party balances
Considered good
Past due 0 - 30 days 51,933 59,165
Past due 31 - 60 days 53,971 35,297
Considered doubtful
Over one year
Past due 61 - 90 days 54,011 3
Past due 91 - 120 days 61,369 18,152
Past due 121 - 180 days 11,365 60,634
Past due 181 - 364 days 4,282 43,462
Past due over one year 6,554 5,202
243,485 221,915
13.3 Movement in impairment allowance
Balance as at July 01 216,962 165,772
Provision for the year - 51,879
Bad debts written off (62,010) (689)
Balance as at June 30 154,952 216,962
Loans and advances
Current portion of long term loans:
Due from employees
- secured, considered good 12,442 14,200
- considered doubtful 1,250 1,564
9 13,692 15,764
Less: Impairment allowance 14.1 (1,250) (1,564)
12,442 14,200
Loan to related party 40,000 40,000
Advances - unsecured, considered good:
- employees 432 769
- suppliers 169,076 222,276
169,508 223,045
221,950 277,245
14.1 Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 1,564 1,564
Reversal during the year (314) -
Balance as at June 30 1,250 1,564




15

16

Annual Report 2022 | 91

14.2 This represents loan given to Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited, a related party at a markup of average
borrowing rate of the Company plus 2% per annum. The loan is repayable in October 2022 and is secured by
charge over stock in trade and trade debts of the borrower and personal guarantee of director.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Trade deposits
- considered good 11,337 17,716
- considered doubtful 10,515 9,716
21,852 27,432
Less: Impairment allowance 15.1 (10,515) (9,716)
11,337 17,716
Short term prepayments 15,484 13,960
26,821 31,676
15.1 Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 9716 9,716
Provision made during the year 799 i
Balance as at June 30 10,515 9,716
Other receivables
LC margin - 110,000
Receivable from related parties 16.1 104,866 62,165
Export rebate 12,297 12,446
Provision against export rebate (11,824) (11,824)
473 622
Accrued interest 4,306 2,378
Insurance claim receivable 2,646 6,607
Others 1,342 2,551
113,633 184,323
16.1 Other receivables include the following amounts
due from the following related parties:
Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party 16.1.1 58,612 43,811
Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited -
subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited 16.1.2 62,936 35,331
3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited - related party 16.1.3 2,419 1,880
16.1.4 123,967 81,022
Less: Impairment allowance 16.3 (19,101) (18,857)

104,866 62,165
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16.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
58.77 million (2021: Rs. 43.81 million).

16.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
71.60 million (2021: Rs. 60.01 million).

16.1.3 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 2.42
million. (2021: Rs. 1.88 million).

16.1.4 This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per agreed
terms.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

16.2 Aging of related party balances

Past due 0 - 30 days 8,474 9,424
Past due 31 - 60 days 4,997 646
Past due 61 - 90 days 5,759 3,144
Past due 91 - 120 days 6,038 2,821
Past due 121 - 180 days 11,082 10,486
Past due 181 - 364 days 69,681 22,237
Past due over one year 17,936 32,264

123,967 81,022

16.3 Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:

Balance as at July 01 18,857 8,813
Provision for the year 244 10,044
Balance as at June 30 19,101 18,857

This represents net refunds related to taxation amounting to Rs. 172.82 million (2021: Rs. 192.66 million) due from
the Government.

Shortterm investment

This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance is
under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carry mark-up at rates
ranging from 7% to 11.25% per annum (2021: 5.25% to 7.94% per annum). The balance includes Rs. 110 million
which has beenincluded in cash and cash equivalents in note 40 to these financial statements.

2022 2021

Cash and bank balances (Rupees in thousand)

Cash at bank:
- current accounts 222,690 43,466
Cash in hand 981 1,010

223,671 44,476
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Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)
Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital
Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 12,135,798 12,135,798 121,358 121,358
fully paid up in cash
Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8,323,881 8,323,881 83,239 83,239
issued as bonus shares
20,459,679 20,459,679 204,597 204,597
20.1 As at June 30, 2022, Slotrapid Limited, the Holding Company, and their nominees hold 10,649,314 (2021:
10,649,314) voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 52.05 % (2021: 52.05%) of the ordinary paid
up capital of the Company.
20.2 There was no movementin number of shares during the year.
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Reserves
Capital reserves
Share premium reserve 21.1 34,086 34,086
Fair value reserve - net of tax 21.2 23,931 11,218
58,017 45,304
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and
machinery - net of tax 21.3 830,273 849,056
888,290 894,360
Revenue reserves
General reserve 285,000 285,000
Accumulated profits 967,825 841,416
1,252,825 1,126,416
2,141,115 2,020,776

21.2

213

This reserve can be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act,
2017.

This represents fair value reserve created on investment classified as FVOCI.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net of tax
As at beginning of the year 849,056 877,100

Net amount transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
Incremental depreciation - net of tax (18,783) (28,044)

830,273 849,056
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21.3.1 The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the
shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

21.3.2 The latest valuation of freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land
and plant and machinery was carried out by Harvestor Enterprises and Company, an independent valuer on
June 30, 2020. The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar properties /
assets. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot
for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery respectively.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Long term financing - secured
Mark-up based financing from conventional banks:
JS Bank Limited 29 1 43.943 62.270
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 223 _ 45.832
National Bank of Pakistan Limited 224 98.551 _
157,524 151,808
Islamic mode of financing:
First Habib Modaraba 225 41,346 31,491
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 226 52,083 77,083
93,429 108,574
250,953 260,382
Mark-up based financing from conventional banks:
Current portion shown under current liabilities (34,980) (76,349)
Islamic mode of financing:
Current portion shown under current liabilities (32,751) (31,535)
183,222 152,498
22.1 JS Bank Limited
- JS Bank Limited - facility 2 22.1.1 - 6,020
- JS Bank Limited - facility 3 22.1.2 43,943 56,250
43,943 62,270

22.1.1 This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 8.6 million to finance 0.38MW grid pegged solar
power plant. The outstanding balance was repaid during the year. Markup was payable quarterly and was
charged at the rate of one month KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The facility was secured against an equitable
mortgage and first charge on land and building of Lahore factory of the Company.

22.1.2 This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 63 million to finance 0.604MW grid pegged solar
power plant. The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs. 2.25 million each ending in
July 2027. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at the rate of 6% per annum. The facility is secured
against an equitable mortgage and first charge on land and building of Lahore factory of the Company.
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22.2 This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 70 million. The loan is obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for payment of salaries and wages. The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly
instalments of Rs. 4.80 million each ending in February 2023. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at
the rate of 3% per annum. The facility is secured against a ranking charge over present and future fixed
assets of the company amounting to Rs. 94 million. The loan has been recognised at present value using
effective rate of 8.78% perannum.

22.3 This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 76.5 million. The loan was obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for payment of salaries and wages. The outstanding balance was repaid during the year.
Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at fixed rate of 3% per annum. This facility was secured against
raking charge amounting to Rs. 134 million over all present and future current assets Company. The loan had
been recognised at present value using effective rate of 8.78% per annum.

22.4 This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 100 million. The loan was obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for Temporary Economic Refinance. The facility is repayable in quarterly instalments of
Rs. 2.8 million each ending in September 2031. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at 3 month Kibor
plus 5% spread per annum. This facility was secured against first pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 134
million over all present and future current assets of the Company.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
22.5 First Habib Modaraba

- First Habib Modaraba - facility 1 22.5.1 4,482 11,222
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 2 22.5.2 - 1,363
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 3 22.5.3 2,300 2,827
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 4 22.5.4 3,927 4,617
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 5 22.5.5 1,363 1,631
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 6 22.5.6 4,620 5,489
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 7 22.5.7 3,636 4,342

- First Habib Modaraba - facility 8 22.5.8 7,481 -

- First Habib Modaraba - facility 9 22.5.9 3,579 -

- First Habib Modaraba - facility 10 22.5.10 9,958 -
41,346 31,491

22.5.1 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 15.05 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in July 2024. Profit is payable quarterly and charged at
the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over present and
future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company and the
lender till the facility is fully repaid

22.5.2 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 5.28 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility was repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022. Profit was payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility was secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset was held jointly by the
Company and the lender till the facility was fully repaid.

22.5.3 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 3.39 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in June 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and charged
at the rate of sixmonth's KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over presentand
future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company and the
lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.4 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 5.21 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in September 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.
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22.5.5 Thisrepresents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 1.795 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in December 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.6 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 6.04 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in November 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.7 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 4.81 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in September 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.8 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 8.91 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in April 2026. Profit is payable quarterly and charged
atthe rate of sixmonth's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over present and
future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company and the
lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.9 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 3.94 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in October 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

22.5.10 Thisrepresents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 10.64 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2027. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the Company
and the lender ill the facility is fully repaid.

22.6 This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting Rs. 100 million to pay off conventional liabilities.
The facility is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in July 2024 with a grace
period of 1 year. Mark-up is payable monthly and is charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 1.25% per
annum. This facility is secured against raking charge amounting to Rs. 133 million on all present and future
current assets of the Company.

22.7 The Company has total credit facilities of Rs. 518 million (2021: 418 million) at the year end. Whereas the
Company has availed credit facilities of Rs. 518 million (2021: Rs. 418 million) and unavailed credit facilities
of Rs. nil (2021: nil) atthe year end.

2022 2021

R in th
Long term diminishing musharaka (Rupees in thousand)

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (BPPL) - Sukkuk of Rs. 500 million 16,000 -

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company issued 16 BPPL Sukuk certificates, having face value of Rs. 1
million each aggregating to Rs. 16 million and entered into a diminishing musharaka agreement with the investment
agent, Pak Oman Investment Company (trustee on behalf of the Sukuk holders) as a co-owner of the musharaka
assets. The issue resulted in cash receipt of subscription money of Rs. 16 million. The Sukuk certificates carry profit
at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.5% with quarterly rental payments. These certificates are issued for a tenure of
four years and are structured in such a way that first quarterly principal repayment installment commenced from the
quarter ended September 2023. Under this arrangement the Company sold the beneficial ownership of the
musharaka assets, its freehold land and building on freehold land, to the investment agent (for the benefit of Sukuk
holders) although legal title remains with the Company. The overall arrangement has been accounted for in these
financial statements on the basis of substance of the transaction.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Deferred grant
Balance as at July 01 3,562 3,739
Recognised during the year 3,898 6,418
Reversed during the year (800) -
Amortization of grant during the year (3,030) (6,595)
3,630 3,562
Less: current portion of deferred grants (1,379) (2,407)
Balance as at June 30 2,251 1,155
Long term employee benefits
Defined benefit plan
Staff pension fund 25.1 41,790 40,262
Staff gratuity fund 25.1 82,734 14,096
124,524 54,358
Other long term employee benefits
Accumulating compensated absences 25.2 19,488 21,231
144,012 75,589

Defined benefit plan

As mentioned in note 4.17 the Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all its
permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation
was carried out at June 30, 2022. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was used for

these valuations:

Retirement age

25.1

2022 2021
Valuation discount rate 13.25% 10.0%
Expected rate of increase in salaries 12.25% 9.0%
Withdrawal rates Age-Based Age-Based
(per appendix) (per appendix)
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)
60 years 60 years
Statement of financial position reconciliation
2022 2021
Pension Gratuity Pension  Gratuity
(Rupees in thousand)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 101,260 111,000 98,206 89,299
Fair value of plan assets (59,471) (28,266) (57,944) (75,203)
41,789 82,734 40,262 14,096
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25.1.1

25.1.2

25.1.3

2022 2021
Pension Gratuity Pension  Gratuity
(Rupees in thousand)

Movement in defined benefit

obligation is as follows:
Obligation as at July 01 98,206 89,299 87,728 80,446
Employees' contribution not paid to

the fund by the Company 1,391 - 1,105 -
Service cost 2,107 12,282 2,941 8,828
Interest cost 9,682 8,308 7,352 6,051
Benefits paid (2,764) (12,446) (2,480) (10,212)
Remeasurement loss / (gain) (7,362) 13,557 1,560 4,186
Obligation as at June 30 101,260 111,000 98,206 89,299
Movement in the fair value of plan

assets is as follows:
Fair value as at July 01 57,944 75,203 54,023 39
Expected return on plan assets 5,794 5,020 4,592 3,191
Remeasurement loss (4,268) (1,958) (399) (8,027)
Company’s contribution 2,764 17,446 2,208 85,212
Fund transferrec_j back to the i (55,000) i i

Company during the year
Benefits paid (2,764) (12,446) (2,480) (10,212)
Fair value as at June 30 59,470 28,265 57,944 75,203
Movement in net liability in the statement

of financial position is as follows:
Net liability as at July 01 40,262 14,096 33,705 80,407
Charge for the year 5,995 15,570 5,701 11,688
Charge to other comprehensive

income during the year (8,094) 15,515 1,959 7,213
Company’s contribution (2,764) (17,446) (2,208) (85,212)
Fund transferred back to the Company

during the year ) 55,000 B )
Employees' contribution deducted

but not paid to the fund 1,391 ) 1,105 )
Net liability as at June 30 41,790 82,735 40,262 14,096
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2022 2021
Pension Gratuity Pension  Gratuity
(Rupees in thousand)
25.1.4 Charge for the year - net
Current service cost 2,107 12,282 2,941 8,828
Interest cost 9,682 8,308 7,352 6,051
Expected return on plan assets (5,794) (5,020) (4,592) (3,191)
Loss on settlements - - - -
5,995 15,570 5,701 11,688
Actual return on plan assets 1,526 3,062 4,193 164
25.1.5 The charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 2,959 7,132 2,519 5,164
Selling and distribution expenses 2,428 5,852 2,145 4,398
Administrative and general expenses 608 2,585 1,037 2,126
5,995 15,569 5,701 11,688
25.1.6 Plan assets comprise of the following:
Collective investment schemes 39,732 25,000 39,349 75,000
Cash at bank 19,739 3,267 18,595 203
59,471 28,267 57,944 75,203

25.1.7 Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of
defined benefit obligation and deficit thereon is as follows:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
As at 30 June (Rupees in thousand)
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 212,260 187,505 164,016 178,501 166,548
Fair value of plan assets (87,735) (133,147) (54,064) (51,507) (50,609)
Deficit 124,525 54,358 109,952 126,994 115,939
Experience adjustment:
Loss / (gain) on obligations 5,746 (4,810) (4,883) 1,674
Gain on plan assets 10,814 7,783 6,317 4,471 4,720

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based
on gross redemption yields as at reporting date.
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25.1.8

25.1.9

25.1.10

25.1.11

25.2

Expected expense for next year

The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending June 30, 2023 works out to
Rs. 9.00 million and Rs. 26.05 million respectively.

The plans expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:
Salaryrisks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service may be greater than that assumed in
determination of present value of defined benefits obligations. As the benefitis calculated on the final salary
(which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as
salary increase.

Mortality / withdrawal risks

The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon
beneficiaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Interest rate risks

The risk that bond interest rate may be different. A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the liability,
andvice versa.

Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

Ifthe significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date,
had fluctuated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 would have been as follows:

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30,2022

Pension Gratuity
Change Increase to  Decrease to Increaseto  Decrease to

(Rupees in thousand)
Discount rate X 1% 85,501 119,922 101,492 121,399
Future salary x 1% 119,925 85,502 121,397 101,491

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has been
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of defined benefit obligation
reported in the statement of financial position.

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 24 years and 9 years for pension and gratuity
plans, respectively.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Other long term employee benefits
Movement in accumulated compensated absences
Balance as at July 01 21,231 24,416
Provision during the year 25.2.2 665 2,718
Payments made during the year (2,408) (5,903)

Balance as at June 30 19,488 21,231
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
25.2.1 Reconciliation of present value of liability
Present value of liability as at July 01 21,231 24,416
Service cost 2,191 2,837
Interest on defined benefit liability 2,003 1,645
Benefits paid (2,408) (5,903)
Remeasurement gain (8,529) (1,764)
Present value of liability as at June 30 19,488 21,231
25.2.2 Charge for the year
Service cost 2,191 2,837
Interest on defined benefit liability 2,003 1,645
Remeasurement gain (8,529) (1,764)
665 2,718
25.2.2.1The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 305 1,201
Selling and distribution expenses 250 1,023
Administrative and general expenses 110 494
665 2,718

25.2.3 Expected expense for nextyear

The expected expense pertaining to accumulated compensated absences for the year ending June 30,
2023 works out to Rs. 4.86 million.

25.2.4 Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

Ifthe significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date,
had fluctuated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 would have been as follows:

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30,2022

Defined benefit obligation

Change Increase to Decrease to
Discount rate .l 1% 17,818 21,313
Future salary * 1% 21,313 17,818

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has been
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of defined benefit obligation
reported in the statement of financial position.

25.2.5 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9 years.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
26 Trade and other payables
Trade and other creditors 943,432 898,398
Import bills payable 402,462 324,246
Contract liabilities 45,164 34,840
Accrued expenses 81,184 63,611
Provision for infrastructure cess 26.1 96,087 88,097
Royalty payable to related parties 26.2 48,210 23,247
Technical fee payable 40,299 34,953
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 26.3 17,920 17,893
Workers' Welfare Fund 19,020 22,795
Due to statutory authorities 26.4 18,654 16,948
Others 44,026 44,146
1,756,458 1,569,174
26.1 Provision for infrastructure cess
Balance as at July 01 88,097 80,860
Provision for the year 7,990 7,237
Balance as at June 30 96,087 88,097
26.2 This includes amount due to the following related parties:
Slotrapid Limited - Holding Company 48,178 23,215
Buxly Paints Limited - Associated Company 32 32
48,210 23,247
26.3 Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Balance as at July 01 17,893 18,943
Allocation for the year 13,137 13,772
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 360 394
31,390 33,109
Payments during the year (13,470) (15,216)
Balance as at June 30 17,920 17,893

Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Profit Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

26.4 This includes payable to Provident Fund amounting to Rs. 8.59 million (2021: Rs. 2.84 million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
27 Accrued markup
Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks
Long term financing - secured 1,644 1,785
Short term financing - secured 3,128 2,103
Short term running finances - secured 33,057 18,471
37,829 22,359
Mark-up based borrowings from Islamic banks
Long term financing - secured 1,815 120
Short term financing - secured 1,115 -
Short term running finances - secured 4,539 -
45,298 22,479
28 Short term borrowings - secured
Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks
Short term financing - secured 28.1 92,552 60,700
Short term running finance - secured 28.2 918,399 786,805
1,010,951 847,505
Mark-up based borrowings from Islamic banks
Short term financing - secured 28.3 163,000 -
Short term running finance - secured 28.4 199,988 -
362,988 -
1,373,939 847,505

28.1

28.2

28.3

Short term financing - Conventional banks

This represents utilized amount of short term financing facilities under mark-up arrangements available
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 255 million (2021: Rs. 280 million). These facilities are secured
against ranking charge on all present and future current assets of the Company. These carry mark-up at
rates ranging between 8.51% and 15.41% (2021: 8.16% and 9.37%) per annum, payable quarterly.

Short term running finances - Conventional banks

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,050 million (2021: Rs. 1,250 million). These facilities
are secured against joint pari passu charge over all the present and future current assets of the Company
and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.45% and 15.31% (2021: 8.53% and 9.03%) per annum,
payable quarterly.

Shortterm financing - Islamic banks

This represents utilized amount of short term financing facilities under mark-up arrangements available
from Islamic banks aggregating to Rs. 350 million (2021: Rs. 150 million). These facilities are secured
against joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets of the Company. These carry mark-
up atrates ranging between 11.61% and 13.14% (2021: nil) per annum, payable quarterly.
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28.4 Short term running finances - Islamic banks

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 200 million (2021: Rs. nil). These facilities are secured
against registered charge over the current assets of the Company and carry mark-up at rates ranging
between 14.62% and 15.56% (2021: nil) per annum, payable quarterly.

28.5 The Company has total credit facilities of Rs. 1,855 million (2021: 1,580 million) at the year end. Whereas
the Company has availed credit facilities of Rs. 1,855 million (2021: Rs. 1,580 million) and unavailed credit
facilities of Rs. nil (2021: Rs. nil) at the year end.

29 Contingencies and commitments

29.1 Contingencies

In 1987, the Company filed a suit against an ex-distributor (Asia paints) in the Sindh High Court (the
court) for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5 million on account of unpaid
credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. However, the distributor in return also
filed a counter claim amounting to Rs. 78.15 million against the Company in the court on account of
damages and compensation. The management believes on the basis of legal advice that it has a
strong case and no financial obligation is expected to arise. Accordingly, no provision has been made
in the financial statements.

The Company contracted Allied Engineering for installation of solar panels and solar systems at the
factory. The process was to be completed in different phases. After the completion of initial phase,
issues were identified in the solar systems installed. The Company opted to get the solar systems
installed from another vendor while inviting Allied Engineering to reach a settlement. However, Allied
Engineering wanted full execution of the contract and full payment of the agreed amount, out of which
Rs. 4 million is unpaid at the reporting date. The management on the basis of legal advice, believes that
it has a strong case and no further financial obligation is expected to arise.

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) through an assessment raised sales tax demand amounting to Rs.
39.34 million along-with penalty. Department (SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty figures
appearing in accounts including royalty receivable, royalty payable, royalty expense and related party
transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties. The Company, through its legal counsel, filed an appeal
before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB on the grounds that amount of sales tax is not correctly
calculated and the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 are not applicable for the
reason that the Company is managing its affairs from the province of Punjab. The Commissioner
(Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18 million, against which the Company had filed an appeal
before Appellate Tribunal SRB which is pending adjudication. The management on the basis of
opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in
these financial statements.

During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued show cause notices for
collection of income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this regard,
the taxation officer raised demand of Rs. 58.94 million for tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 vide
various assessment orders. The Company through its legal counsel filed appeals to Commissioner
Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR - A) against the said orders which are still pending adjudication. The
management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no
provision has beenrecorded in these financial statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) and Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue
(DCIR), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income tax demands
amounting to Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the tax years 2014 and 2016 respectively vide
two separate orders. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals),
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) remanded the case on some issues and confirmed
additions to the tune of Rs. 32.99 million and Rs. 9.2 million for the tax year 2014 and 2016 respectively.
The Company through its legal counsel had filed an appeal before ACIR which is pending
adjudication. The management believes that it has a strong arguable case and matter will be decided
in favor of the Company. Hence no provision has been recorded inthese financial statements.

The Commissioner Appeals - |, Lahore, vide its order for tax year 2016, deleted certain additions while
remanding the case on certain issues and upheld the case on issue of contractor services which
involves revenue amounting to Rs. 10.67 million. Appeal against this order has been filed which is
pending adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a
favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.
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During the year 2016, a notice from Punjab Revenue Authority involving an amount of Rs. 11.45 million
as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 2012 to March 2015 was issued which is
under investigation / adjudication proceedings and no demand is raised. The management on the
basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been
recorded inthese financial statements.

Additional Commissioner Enforcement of Punjab Revenue Authority issued assessment order
creating demand of Rs. 132 million under various section of Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act 2012.
However, the Company through its legal counsel filed appeal before Commissioner Appeals PRA
against the order of Additional Commissioner which is pending adjudication. The management on the
basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been
recorded in these financial statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section | 22 (5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2019. The Company filed an appeal against the said order
before Commissioner IR Appeals-1, Lahore who remanded back the case in respect of certain issues to
the tune of Rs. 22.81 million which is pending adjudication, deleted certain additions and upheld the
disallowance of initial allowance claimed amounting to Rs. 1.7 million. The Company has filed appeal
before ATIR against this disallowance which is pending adjudication. The management on the basis of
opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful for a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in
these financial statements.

DCIR raised a demand amounting to Rs. 10.5 million in relation to sales tax on sales of scrap stock
burntin fire in 2008 which was upheld by Commissioner Appeals. This demand was later reduced by
Appellate Tribunal up to the demand pertaining to sales tax on fixed assets. The Company being
aggrieved by the order of ATIR, filed an appeal before honorable Lahore high court which was
remanded back to the ATIR and is pending adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of
the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these
financial statements.

The DCIR passed order under section 161(1) for tax year 2014 and raised a demand amounting to Rs.
33.5 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals). The
Appeals remanded back the case to the department for further assessment. Currently, no demand is in
field againstthe Company.

Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 11.401 million
are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable
outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

29.2 Outstanding letters of guarantee as at June 30, 2022 amounts to Rs. 124.70 million (2021: Rs. 108.79
million).
29.3 Commitments
Outstanding letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounts to Rs. 967.30 million (2021: Rs. 464.38
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.
The amount of future rentals for ljarah financing and the period in which these payments will become
due are as follows:
2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)
Not later than one year 1,698 4,629
Later than one year and not later than five years - 1,647

1,698 6,276
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2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

30 Revenue from contract with customers

Local 10,780,380 7,999,515

Export 12,522 86,461
10,792,902 8,085,976

Less:

Discounts (2,131,627) (1,250,351)

Sales tax (1,587,797) (1,233,465)
(8,719,424) (2,483,816)

7,073,478 5,602,160

30.1 The entity is involved in trading of paints, varnishes and other related items. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of goods. The Company makes sales against advances as well as on credit terms.
In case of credit sales, paymentis generally due within 60 to 90 days from the date of delivery of goods.

30.2 Contractbalances

Contract balances primarily comprises of contract liabilities, representing advance consideration received
from customers for the purchase of products. Balance as at reporting date amounted to Rs. 45.2 million
(2021: 34.84 million). Revenue recognized during the reporting period which was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the period amounted to Rs. 34.84 million (2021: Rs. 36.22 million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
31 Cost of sales
Finished goods as at July 01 465,057 395,307
Cost of goods manufactured 31.1 5,852,176 4,481,922
Provision (reversed) / charged slowing moving finished goods (13,413) 28,753
Less: Finished goods as at June 30 (501,776) (465,057)
Consumption of finished goods purchased for resale 31.2 49,424 44,675
Cost of sales 5,851,468 4,485,600
31.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Raw and packing materials consumed 5,151,534 3,795,179
Freight and handling 237,766 210,256
Provision (reversed) / charged against raw
and packing material (8,739) 494
Stores and spare parts consumed 7,007 5,332
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1.1 268,273 224,263
Travelling and conveyance 12,863 3,106
Fuel, water and power 96,291 87,668
Legal and professional 954 3,716
Rent, rates and taxes 365 387
Insurance 7,708 7,047
Repairs and maintenance 41,503 33,583
Depreciation 6.1.5 98,442 103,130
ljarah lease rentals 1,831 1,627
Printing and stationery 2,094 2,027
Communication 1,292 1,522
Others 9,571 13,001
5,933,755 4,492,338
Opening stock of semi-processed goods 80,946 71,550
Closing stock of semi-processed goods (162,191) (80,946)
Provision reversed during the year (334) (1,020)
Cost of goods manufactured 5,852,176 4,481,922

31.1.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 7.13 million (2021: Rs. 5.16 million) in respect of gratuity fund, Rs.
2.96 million (2021: Rs. 2.52 million) in respect of pension fund, Rs. 0.3 million (2021: Rs. 1.2 million) in
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 3.43 million (2021: Rs. 3.13 million) in respect of provident fund
contribution.
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31.2 The movement of finished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Finished goods as at July 01 81,687 114,091
Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year 25,136 12,271
Less: Consumption of finished goods during the year (49,424) (44,675)
Finished goods as at June 30 57,399 81,687
32 Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries and other benefits 32.1 371,458 311,250
Travelling and conveyance 2,826 1,966
Rent, rates and taxes 5,122 2,961
Insurance 11,666 9,545
Fuel, water and power 9,742 5,716
Advertising and sales promotion 181,249 112,881
Technical services and royalty fee 32.2 53,523 49,059
Repairs and maintenance 2,361 2,804
Depreciation 6.1.5 22,308 20,753
ljarah lease rentals 2,264 1,672
Printing and stationery 1,304 1,865
Legal and professional 2,558 2,259
Communication 5,195 8,493
Others 5,819 7,667
677,395 538,891

32.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 5.86 million (2021: Rs. 4.39 million) in respect of gratuity fund, Rs.
2.43 million (2021: Rs. 2.15 million) in respect of pension fund, Rs. 0.25 million (2021: Rs. 1.02 million) in
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 8.05 million (2021: Rs. 6.83 million) in respect of provident fund
contribution.

32.2 This represents royalty and technical fee expense for the year;

Name and address of the party Relationship with 2022 2021
Company (Rupees in thousand)
Slotrapid Limited Licensor (the

(Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street, Holding
Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Company)

Island.) 48,178 44,370

Oxyplast Belgium N.V. Licensor

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent — Mendonk, Belgium.) 5,345 4,682

Buxly Paints Limited Licensor

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.L.T.E., Karachi.) (Associated - 7
Company)

53,523 49,059
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
33 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benefits 33.1 119,701 113,486
Directors' meeting fee 4,200 3,600
Travelling and conveyance 10,327 1,986
Rent, rates and taxes 2,290 4,377
Insurance 4,021 5,134
Auditors' remuneration 33.2 3,908 2,820
Fuel, water and power 5,407 2,121
Repairs and maintenance 2,390 2,703
Depreciation 6.1.5 11,834 10,910
Amortization of computer software 188 1,305
ljarah lease rentals 1,694 1,613
Printing and stationery 1,600 1,345
Legal and professional 13,012 11,663
Communication 2,960 3,240
Others 8,418 5,754
191,950 172,057

33.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 2.59 million (2021: Rs. 2.13 million) in respect of gratuity fund, Rs.
0.61 million (2021: Rs. 1.03 million) in respect of pension fund, Rs. 0.11 million (2021: Rs. 0.49 million) in
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 5.35 million (2021: Rs. 5.07 million) in respect of provident fund
contribution.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
33.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 2,100 2,010
Consolidation and half yearly review 900 460
Out of pocket expenses 578 350
Statutory certifications 330 -
3,908 2,820
34 Other operating expenses
Impairment of goodwill - 24,000
Impairment of investment in associate - 4,293
Workers' Welfare Fund 5,659 8,400
Workers' Profit Participation fund 13,137 13,772
Cost of provision of services to related party 32,018 -
Others 590 -

51,404 50,465
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
35 Other income
Mark-up on term deposit receipts
and long term loan 35.1 11,681 11,581
Sale of scrap 31,854 23,961
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - net 4,560 4,640
Rental income and other services
charged to related parties 35,942 4,827
Export rebate 711 1,153
Insurance claim 871 -
Exchange gain - net 9,933 33,643
Amortization of deferred grant 3,030 6,595
Others 7,578 5,180
106,160 91,580

35.1 This includes interest income of Rs. 6.27 million (2021: 8.07 million) charged on receivable balance from
Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited and Buxly Paints Limited, related parties, on amount which is overdue
for more than 90 days.

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)
36 Finance cost

Islamic mode of financing:

- Long term financing - secured 9,256 10,785

- Short term financing - secured 2,548 -

- Short term running finances - secured 4,539 -
16,343 10,785

Mark-up based borrowings from
conventional banks:

- Long term financing - secured 18,700 12,496
- Short term financing - secured 4,976 4,508
- Short term running finances - secured 111,740 81,017
135,416 98,021
Interest on WPPF 360 394
Bank charges 11,358 8,558
163,477 117,758
37 Taxation

Current
- for the year 93,291 121,277
- prior year (79,934) (4,906)
Deferred 13,357 116,371
- current year 31,775 (49,628)
- prior year - 5,082

45,132 71,825
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37.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021
Applicable tax rate 29.00% 29.00%
Tax effect of:
- income under Final Tax Regime 0.05% 0.07%
- prior year adjustment -32.36% -1.80%
- permanent difference 6.72% 0.66%
- others 13.04% -1.03%
- effect of super tax 1.82% 0.00%
Average effective tax rate charged to profit or loss 18.27% 26.90%
2022 2021
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
38.1 Earning per share - basic and diluted
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 201,886 195,221
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year (Number of shares) 20,459,679 20,459,679
Earning per share - basic 9.87 9.54

38.2 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any
instruments carrying options as at June 30, 2022, which would have an impact on earnings per share when

exercised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances
Short term investment

Short term running finance - secured

Note

19
18
28

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

223,671 44,476
110,000 -
(1,118,387) (786,805)

(784,716) (742,329)
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40 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

41

2022 2021

Non-Executive Non-Executive
Chief Executive Executives Directors Chief Executive Executives Directors

(Rupees in thousand)

Fees = = 4,200 - - 3,600
Managerial remuneration (including bonus) 14,000 59,085 - 14,000 42,473
Retirement and other long term benefits 15,000 42,971 - 13,636 34,159
House rent allowance = 20,594 = - 19,113
Utilities = 4,577 = - 4,247
Medical expenses - 5,721 - - 5,309
Provident Fund 1,273 4,388 - 1,273 21,070

30,273 137,336 4,200 28,909 126,371 3,600

1 20 7 1 17 7

Number of persons

40.1 Retirement and other long term benefits include benefits provided under provident fund, gratuity, pension
and accumulated compensated absences.

40.2 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Company are provided with free use of Company
cars. The approximate value of the benefitamounts to Rs. 9.40 million (2021: Rs. 5.94 million).

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2022
Unclaimed Long term Long term Short term
. diminishing - . . Total
dividend financing borrowing
musharaka
(Rupees in thousand)

As at June 30, 2021 7,551 - 260,382 847,505 1,115,438
Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid (82,564) - - - (82,564)
Short term borrowings - net - - - 194,852 194,852
Long term financing - net - - (12,459) - (12,459)
Long term dimishing musharaka - net - 16,000 - - 16,000
Total changes from financing cash flows (82,564) 16,000 (12,459) 194,852 115,829
Other changes
Adjustment of Government grant - - 3,030 - 3,030
Change in borrowings- net - - - 331,582 331,582
Dividend declared 81,839 - - - 81,839
Total liability related other changes 81,839 - 3,030 331,582 416,451

As at June 30, 2022 6,826 16,000 250,953 1,373,939 1,647,718
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2021
Unclaimed Long term Long term Short term
L diminishing . . . Total
dividend financing borrowing
musharaka
(Rupees in thousand)
As at June 30, 2020 6,687 - 347,881 1,051,551 1,406,119
Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid (19,596) - - - (19,596)
Proceeds / (repayments) short term borrowings - net - - - (81,276) (81,276)
Long term financing - - (87,676) - (87,676)
Total changes from financing cash flows (19,596) - (87,676) (81,276) (188,548)
Other changes
Change in borrowings - - 177 (122,770) (122,593)
Dividend declared 20,460 - - - 20,460
Total liability related other changes 20,460 - 177 (122,770) (102,133)
As at June 30, 2021 7,551 - 260,382 847,505 1,115,438
2022 2021

Number of employees

(Number of persons)

The Company has employed following number of persons:

- Factory employees 92 96
- Salaried employee 321 319

413 415
- Average number of employees 413 415
- Average number of factory employees 94 98
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43 Transactions with related parties

The Company is a subsidiary of Slotrapid Limited, therefore all the subsidiaries and associates of the Holding
Company are related parties of the Company. In addition related parties includes long term employee benefit,
directors and key management personnel. Amounts due from and due to related parties, remuneration of directors
and key management personnel are disclosed in the relevant notes.

Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Name of parties, nature and basis Holding 2022 2021

L R Nature of transaction
of relationship Percentage
(Rupees in thousand)

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited 52.05% Royalty expense 48,178 44,371
Payment 16,801 37,500
Dividend paid 36,072 9,431

Subsidiary

Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited Sales 6,556 78,572

- Rental income and other 2,987 7,802
services charged

(Wholly owned subsidiary of Berger Common expenditures incurred 19,031 22,264

DPI (Private) Limited) Receipts / adjustments 8,596 52,852

Associated

Dadex Eternit Limited - Sales - 318

(Associated Company)

3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited 49.00% Common expenditures incurred 539 836

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL") 19.95% Sales 377,340 300,740
Royalty expense - 6
Rental expense 1,812 1,812
Rental income and other services 1,200 1,200
Common expenditures incurred 13,661 16,656
Receipts / Adjustments 2,938 5,873
Toll manufacturing - net 31,755 27,072

Post employment benefit plans - Contribution to gratuity fund 17,446 85,212

(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund 2,764 2,208

Provident fund contribution 33,668 30,067
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In addition to these transactions, the Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of warehouse
on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachifor a term of ten years at a nominal monthly rent. After
the aforementioned term of ten years, the company will handover the possession of the building to BPL free of cost.

44 Providentfund related disclosures

The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and eligible employees.
Thefollowing information is based on the un - audited financial statements of the provident fund:

(Unaudited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2022 2021

(Rupees in thousands)

Size of the fund 279,294 261,404
Cost of investments made 228,660 222,747
Percentage of investments - (% of total assets) 82% 85%
Fair value of investments 266,194 254,369

441 The break-up of investments is as follows:

2022 2021

Rupees in Rupees in
thousands %age thousands %age
Investment in debt collective investment scheme 24,408 9% 24,509 3%
Investment in money market collective investment scheme 25,322 10% 24,278 4%
Investment in equity collective investment scheme 12,030 5% 12,192 5%
Bank balances 53,122 20% 47,209 23%
Certificate of deposits 101,250 38% 96,119 36%
Term deposit receipts 50,062 18% 50,062 29%
266,194 100% 254,369 100%

The investments out of provident fund as at June 30, 2022 have been made in accordance with the
requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.

45 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
45.1 Risk management of financial instruments

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with
a view to obtain a reasonable mix between the various sources of finance to minimize the finance related
risks to the entity.

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Marketrisk
- Creditrisk
- Liquidity risk
The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.
45.1.1 Riskmanagementframework

The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s
risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's
risk management policies.
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45.1.2

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect to changes in market conditions and
the Company's activities. The Company through its training and management standards and procedures
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which employees understand their
roles and responsibilities.

The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company's profit or loss or value of its holding of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable
parameters, while optimizing return.

45.1.2.1 Currencyrisk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the Euro (EUR), RMB (Chinese Yuan), United States Dollar (USD) and Japanese Yen (JPY). Currently,
the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities.

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:

2022 2021

(Amount in thousand)

Statement of financial position items

Trade and other payables

- Euro 21 62
-USD 406 1,822
- RMB - 935
- JPY 387 387

Off statement of financial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

- Euro 4 -
-USD 3,139 669
-RMB - 69

- JPY - -
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2022 2021
(In rupees)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupees per Euro
Average rate for the year 201.26 188.66
Reporting date rate 213.81 188.71
Rupees per USD
Average rate for the year 181.58 163.18
Reporting date rate 204.85 158.30
Rupees per RMB
Average rate for the year 27.50 24.08
Reporting date rate 30.60 24.39
Rupees per JPY
Average rate for the year 1.47 1.50

1.50 1.43

Reporting date rate
Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by one rupee against the foreign currencies with all other
variables held constant, profit after tax for the year would have been higher by the amount shown below,
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency loans.

2022 2021

(Amount in thousand)
Effect on profit or loss

- Euro 15 44
-UsD 288 664
-RMB - 1,294
- JPY 275 275

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but opposite impact on the
post tax profit.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit/ (loss) for the year and
assets/ liabilities of the Company.

45.1.2.2 Pricerisk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not
exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity suppliers.
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Sensitivity analysis

The Company's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on the PSX. The
summary below explains the impact of increase on the Company's surplus on investment classified as
FVOCI to change in market price. The analysis is based on the assumption that the market price had
increased by 10% with all other variables held constant:

Impact on equity

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)

Buxly Paints Limited 3,346 1,505

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit after tax for the year
and assets/ liabilities of the Company.

45.1.2.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in interest rates. Significant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed by a mix of
borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial assets
and financial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

Effective rate Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets (Percentage) (Rupees in thousands)
Fixed rate instruments
Short term investment 7% 7% 140,000 30,000
Floating rate instruments
Loan to related party 10.66% t0 16.11% 9.27% to 10.74% 40,000 40,000
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate instruments
Long term financing - secured 5% to 6% 3% to 6% 157,524 145,788
Floating rate instruments
Long term financing - secured 8.65% t0 16.25%  7.65% to 10.33% 93,429 114,594
Short term financing - secured 8.51% t0 15.41% 8.16% t0 9.37% 255,552 60,700
Short term running finance - secured 8.70% to 15.66%  8.03% to 12.94% 1,118,387 786,805
1,467,368 962,099

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
orloss. Therefore, a change in profit / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2022.
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100 bps
Decrease Increase
As at June 30, 2022 10,134 (10,134)
As at June 30, 2021 6,831 (6,831)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit after tax for the year
and assets/ liabilities of the Company.

Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counterparties
fail completely to perform as contracted / fail to discharge an obligation / commitment that it has entered
into with the Company. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of a company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

At amortised cost

Loan to related party - secured 40,000 40,000
Long term loans - secured 52,324 49,911
Long term deposits 20,761 18,753
Trade debts - unsecured 1,628,302 1,219,678
Trade deposits 11,337 17,716

Other receivables

- Receivable from related parties 104,866 62,165

- LC Margin - 110,000

- Others 8,767 12,158
113,633 184,323

Short term investment - secured 140,000 30,000
Bank balances 222,690 43,466
2,229,047 1,603,847

Concentration of credit risk

The Company identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Trade debts 1,628,302 1,219,678
Banking companies and financial institutions 362,690 183,466
Others 238,055 200,703

2,229,047 1,603,847
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45.1.3.1 Loan to related party

Loan to related party is secured by a charge over stock in trade, trade debts and personal guarantee of
Directors of the Company. There is no increase in credit risk since origination and the loan is repayable in
short term. Hence, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the
loan.

45.1.3.2 Trade deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables represents deposits held by government institutions and vendors. The
Company has assessed, based on historical experience, that the expected credit loss associated with
these financial assets is generally trivial. Hence, no additional allowance has been recognised in these
financial statements.

45.1.3.3 Receivable from related party

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs on receivables from related parties. Loss rates
are determined using a 'roll rate' method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency. The future recoveries from related parties are accounted for in
calculating the loss rate.

45.1.3.4 Longtermloans

Long term loans are due from employees of the Company and are secured against assets. Hence, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these loans.

45.1.3.5 Trade debts

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs of trade debts. Loss rates are calculated using a
'roll rate' method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of
delinquency. The future recoveries from trade debtors are accounted for in calculating the loss rate.

Weighted Gross

average loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance

June 30, 2022
Past due 0 - 30 days 0.00% 702,742 -
Past due 31 - 60 days 0.88% 422,012 3,713
Past due 61 - 90 days 1.13% 240,252 2,719
Past due 91 - 120 days 2.91% 149,985 4,361
Past due 121 - 180 days 5.58% 77,351 4,314
Past due 181 - 364 days 24.60% 67,728 16,661
Past due over one year 100.00% 123,184 123,184
1,783,254 154,952

June 30, 2021

Past due 0 - 30 days 1.74% 564,958 9,856
Past due 31 - 60 days 1.63% 264,962 4,327
Past due 61 - 90 days 2.39% 176,009 4,200
Past due 91 - 120 days 5.05% 110,558 5,579
Past due 121 - 180 days 7.78% 88,001 6,849
Past due 181 - 364 days 45.96% 85,122 39,121
Past due over one year 100.00% 147,030 147,030
1,436,640 216,962
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45.1.3.6 Balances with banking companies

'The Company held balances with banks, short term investments and LC margin amounting to Rs. 362.69
million as at June 30, 2022. These are held with banks and financial institutions counterparties, which are
rated A1to AAA, based on credit ratings from rating agencies.

Impairment on these financial assets has been measured on a 12 month expected loss basis and reflects
short term maturities of the exposure. The Company considers that these balances have low credit risk
based on the external ratings of the counterparties.

12 month probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by PACRA and VIS rating agency for
each creditrating. Loss given default (LGD) parameters generally reflect assumed recovery rates based on
recovery rates assumed in Basel Guidelines for unsecured exposures.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Bank Balances 222,690 43,466

Short term investment 140,000 30,000

Other receivables - 110,000
362,690 183,466

45.1.3.7 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating Rating 2022 2021

Banks Shortterm  Long term Agency (Rupees in thousand)
Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 19,629 19,356
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1 AA+ PACRA 181,294 8,152
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 35 985
JS Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA 30,000 30,840
Al-Barka Bank Pakistan Limited A-1 A+ VIS 6 1,812
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA = -
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA PACRA 112,550 110,540
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A-1 A+ PACRA 16,632 1,870
Samba Bank Limited AA A-1 VIS 9 -
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 2,535 9,911

362,690 183,466

The Company has not recognised an impairment allowance on bank balances during the year ended June
30, 2022, as the impact was immaterial.
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Trusted Worldwide

45.1.4 Liquidity risk

45.2

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset, or that such obligation will
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Company. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions. The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings
and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. The management aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular committed credit
limits.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022

Carrying Contractual Less than one Two to five More than five
amount cash flow year years years

I I— (Rupees in thousand)
Non derivative financial liabilities

Long term financing - secured 250,953 250,953 67,731 139,421 43,801
Long term diminishing musharaka 16,000 16,000 - 16,000 -
Trade and other payables 1,559,613 1,559,613 1,559,613 - -
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 45,298 45,298 45,298 S =
Short term borrowings - secured 1,373,939 1,373,939 1,373,939 - =
3,245,803 3,245,803 3,046,581 155,421 43,801

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021

Carrying Contractual Less than one Two to five More than five
amount cash flow year years years

(Rupees in thousand)
Non derivative financial liabilities

Long term financing - secured 260,382 287,012 124,796 150,624 11,592
Trade and other payables 1,388,601 1,388,601 1,388,601 - -
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 22,479 22,479 22,479 - -
Short term borrowings - secured 847,505 1,095,218 1,095,218 - -
2,518,967 2,793,310 2,631,094 150,624 11,592

It is not expected that the cash flows on the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significant differentamount.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and there is
no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and that
price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at
measurement date (Level 1)

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) inputs
(Level 3)
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Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of
fairvalue.
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45.3

45.4

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial assets and liabilities which are for short term or
repriced over shortterm. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by an
independent valuation expert appointed by the Company. The valuation expert used a market based
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Company's land and building. The valuation was determined by
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs
used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of
sensitivity has not been presented in these financial statements.

46 Capital risk management

47

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the
lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio.

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings including

current and non-current borrowings. Total capital is calculated as 'equity' as shown in the statement of financial
position plus net debt. The gearing ratios as at year end are as follows:

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees
Long term loans 250,953 260,382
Short term borrowings 1,373,939 847,505
Total debt 1,624,892 1,107,887
Total equity 2,345,712 2,225,373
Total equity and debt 3,970,604 3,333,260
Gearing ratio 41:59 33:67
Restriction on title and assets pledged as security
Mortgages and charges
First
Hypothecation of all present and future current assets 2,003,000 2,003,000
Mortgage over land and building 628,171 726,000
Ranking
Hypothecation of all present and future current assets 267,000 -
Mortgage over land and building 734,000 334,000
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2022 2021
(Liters in thousand)

48 Production capacity

Actual production 43,793 39,653

The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 19.41 million liters (2021: 17.12 million liters) which is
used in the manufacture of the final product.

49 Operating segments
49.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

49.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 100% (2021: 99.41%) of the total revenue of the
Company.

49.3 99.88% (2021: 98.93%) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.
49.4 Allnon-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan.
50 Date of authorization forissue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 28, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

51 Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 28, 2022 has proposed a final cash
dividend of Rs. 4.00 per share, for the year ended June 30, 2022 for approval of the members in the Annual General
Meeting to be held on October 26, 2022.

52 General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

Rupees in thousand

Year Ended June 30,
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

NET ASSETS
Fixed Assets 1,629,143 1,636,252 1,641,351 1,183,189 1,237,149 1,154,469
Goodwill - - 24,000 24,000 32,263 36,750
Long Term Investments 68,632 49,955 48,885 51,199 63,532 70,143
Long Term Loans & Deposits 76,770 70,566 41,849 66,818 81,229 74,407
Deferred Taxation - 24,700 - 52,847 - 1,710
Net Current Assets 948,191 707,871 586,186 477,662 362,868 382,320
Total 2,722,736 2,489,344 2,342,271 1,855,715 1,777,041 1,719,799
FINANCED BY
Share Capital 204,597 204,597 204,597 204,597 181,864 181,864
Reserves 1,340,904 | | 1,206,449 1,041,323 934,336 864,227 754,600
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 830,273 849,056 832,950 472,012 509,131 521,363

2,375,774 2,260,102 2,078,870 1,610,945 1,555,222 1,457,827
Long Term and Deferred Liabilities 346,962 229,242 263,401 244,770 221,819 261,972
Total 2,722,736 2,489,344 2,342,271 1,855,715 1,777,041 1,719,799
TURNOVER AND PROFITS
Turnover 7,125,276 5,659,620 4,306,249 5,304,887 5,701,402 5,318,753
Gross Profit 1,243,061 1,142,355 912,990 1,163,698 1,260,136 1,540,336

17.45% 20.18% 21.20% 21.94% 22.10% 28.96%

Profit/(Loss) before tax 251,551 298,313 111,595 106,632 155,984 267,022
Taxation 55,874 (101,750) 44,116 9,839 48,500 67,842
Profit/(Loss) after tax 195,677 196,563 67,479 96,793 107,484 199,180
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Directors of the Holding Company present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2022.

ECONOMY OF PAKISTAN

Though Pakistan survived from the COVID-19 crisis, it faced the daunting tasks in FY2022 such as controlling fiscal deficit, curtailing
current account deficit, managing pressure on exchange rate along with achieving a sustainable economic revival. Rupee devaluation:
this single factor has left businesses in challenging situation where importers are facing significant difficulties in procurement of raw
material through imports.

In early 2022, the Russian-Ukraine conflict elevated global commodity prices which also fueled domestic market inflation. Threats from
high inflation, rising interest rates, lingering supply constraints, and mounting uncertainties have badly affected the financial
performance of most of the companies. The ongoing Political instability in the country has further affected the situation.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Company remains committed to deliver on its long-term objectives of sustainable growth and value creation. This is being achieved
through continued focus on operational excellence, product portfolio diversification, cost reduction and a strong capital structure.

Sales outperformed against targets and resultantly Net Sales for the year recorded at Rs. 7,125 million as compared to Rs. 5,660 million
inlast year, up by 26%. Increase in sales volumes, better product mix and cost reduction measures improved gross profitfrom Rs. 1,142
millionto Rs. 1,243 million, up by 9%.

Selling, Marketing and Administrative expenses were Rs. 876 million compared with Rs. 727 million of the previous year, up by 21%,
effect of general inflation and mainly because of the measures introduced for cost efficiencies and cancellation of discretionary
expenses during last year due to the outbreak of COVID-19in March 20.

Financial costs were increased by Rs. 46 million due to increase in KIBOR rate as compared to previous year.

Rupees in Thousand

Profit before taxation 251,551
Taxation (55,874)
Profit after taxation 195,677
Minority interest 1,542
Net profit for the year attributable to the Holding Company 194,135

The audited accounts of the Holding Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 are annexed.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Holding Company of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited is M/s. Slotrapid Limited which is incorporated in the B.V.I.
PROFIT PER SHARE

The profit per share for the year is Rs. 9.49 [2021: Rs.9.59].

AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the upcoming Annual General
Meeting and Auditors for the year 2022-23 will be appointed in Annual General Meeting.

CORORATE GOVERNANCE
A statement of corporate financial reporting framework appears in the Directors' Report of the Holding Company is annexed.
OTHER INFORMATION

All relevant other information has already been disclosed in Directors' Repot of the Holding Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad Mr. Magbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Date: 28 September 2022 Chief Executive Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30,
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Revenue recognition Our audit procedures in relation to the matter,

(Refer note 31 to the annexed amongst others, included the following:

consolidated financial statements) « understood and evaluated management
controls over revenue and checked their

The Group is principally engaged in the validation:

production and sale of paints, varnishes
and other related items in the local and | < performed verification of sales with underlying
export markets. documentation including dispatch documents

. and salesinvoices;
Revenue from sale of goods is

recognised when the performance | « tested on a sample basis, specific revenue

obligation is satisfied by transferring transactions recorded before and after the

control of promised goods to the reporting date with underlying documentation to

customers. assess whether revenue has been recognized in
the correct period;

- verified that sales prices are approved by the
appropriate authority;
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Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in our audit

We consider revenue recognition as a | < tested on a sample basis, specific discounts as
key audit matter due to revenue being per Group's policy;

one of the key performance indicators of
the Group. Revenue for the year has
increased significantly as compared to
the last year. In addition, revenue was
also considered as an area of an | « tested journal entries relating to revenue
inherent risk of material misstatement recognised during the year based on identified
and significant audit risk as part of the risk criteria; and

audit process.

- performed analytical procedures to analyse
variation in the price and quantity sold during the
year;

- assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements related to
revenue.

Information Other than the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and
our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
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the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken onthe
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited by
another firm of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated October 7, 2021 expressed an unmodified
opinionthereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Hammad Ali Ahmad.

\
A
A.F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Lahore

Date: October 5, 2022
UDIN: AR202210092BDJeQw2Kn
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Trusted Worldwide

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2022

2022 2021
ASSETS Note (Rupees in thousand)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 1,629,120 1,636,041
Intangible assets 7 23 211
Equity - accounted investee - unlisted 8 35,174 34,907
Long term investment - FVOCI 9 33,458 15,048
Long term loans 10 38,632 34,147
Long term deposits and prepayments 1 38,138 36,419
Deferred taxation - net 12 - 24,700
1,774,545 1,781,473
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 22,735 18,491
Stock in trade 13 1,628,152 1,237,161
Trade debts - unsecured 14 1,701,094 1,276,577
Loans and advances 15 186,924 246,748
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 16 26,976 31,676
Other receivables 17 64,418 162,588
Tax refund due from Government 18 222,585 240,243
Short term investment 19 140,000 30,000
Cash and bank balances 20 224,292 46,159
4,217,176 3,289,643
5,991,721 5,071,116
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorised share capital 250,000 250,000
Share capital and reserves
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 21 204,597 204,597
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 830,273 849,056
Other reserves 58,017 45,304
22 888,290 894,360
Revenue reserves
General reserve 285,000 285,000
Accumulated profits 990,162 869,962
22 1,275,162 1,154,962
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 2,368,049 2,253,919
Non-controlling interests 7,725 6,183
Total equity 2,375,774 2,260,102
Non-current liabilities
Long term financing - secured 23 183,222 152,498
Long term diminishing musharaka 24 16,000 -
Deferred grant 25 2,251 1,155
Long term employee benefits 26 144,012 75,589
Deferred taxation - net 12 1,477 -
346,962 229,242
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 1,773,812 1,693,946
Current portion of deferred income 1,379 2,407
Current portion of long term financing 67,731 107,884
Unclaimed dividend 6,826 7,551
Accrued markup 28 45,298 22,479
Short term borrowings - secured 29 1,373,939 847,505
3,268,985 2,581,772
3,615,947 2,811,014
Contingencies and commitments 30
5,991,721 5,071,116
The annexed notes 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended June 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Revenue from contract with customers - net 31 7,125,276 5,659,620
Cost of sales 32 (5,882,215) (4,517,265)
Gross profit 1,243,061 1,142,355
Selling and distribution expenses 33 (683,396) (552,916)
Administrative and general expenses 34 (193,062) (173,813)
Impairment loss reversed / (recorded) during the year 2,539 (22,848)
Other operating expenses 35 (51,542) (62,214)

(925,461) (811,791)
Profit from operations 317,600 330,564
Other income 36 97,220 83,800

414,820 414,364
Finance cost 37 (163,536) (117,781)
Share of profit of equity - accounted investee 8 267 1,730
Profit before taxation 251,551 208,313
Taxation 38 (55,874) (101,750)
Profit after taxation 195,677 196,563
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 194,135 201,822
Non-controlling interests 1,542 (5,259)

195,677 196,563
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 39 9.49 9.54
The annexed notes 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended June 30, 2022

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Profit after taxation e g 196,563

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss i i

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI 18,410 4,761

Related deferred tax liability on Fair value gain on investment

classified as FVOCI (e i

12,713 4,761

Actuarial loss on staff retirement benefits (12,421) (9,172)

Share of OCI of equity - accounted investee - 9,540

Total comprehensive income for the year 195,969 201,692

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company 194,427 206,951

Non-controlling interests 1,542 (5,259)
195,969 201,692

The annexed notes 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 251,551 298,313
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.1.5 132,910 135,324

Amortization on intangible assets 7141 188 1,305

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 36 (4,560) (4,640)

Provision (reversed)/charged against slow moving stock - net (17,486) 28,227

Impairment loss (reversed) / recorded during the year (2,539) 22,848

Provision for long term employee benefit 22,229 20,107

Finance cost 37 163,536 117,781

Impairment on investment in associate 8 o 14,961

Impairment on goodwill o 24,000

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 35 13,137 14,467

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 35 5,797 8,664

Share of profit of equity - accounted investee 8 (267) (1,730)

Amortization of deferred grant 36 (3,030) (6,595)

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan 36 (5,728) (7,429)

304,187 367,290
Operating profit before working capital changes 555,738 665,603
Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (4,244) (4,898)

Stock-in-trade (373,505) (166,360)

Trade debts - unsecured (427,056) (163,596)

Loans and advances 63,040 (96,646)

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 4,700 2,362

Other receivables 99,860 (110,741)

(637,205) (539,879)
Increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables 171,395 648,687
Cash generated from operations 89,928 774,411
Finance cost paid (140,357) (125,612)
Taxation - net (10,813) (87,068)
Long term employee benefit paid (21,227) (92,217)
Funds transferred to the Parent Company from the Gratuity fund 55,000 -
Worker's Profit Participation Fund paid (14,165) (15,126)
Long term loans disbursed - net (2,124) (19,524)
Long term deposits realised / (paid) - net 2,109 (878)

(131,577) (340,425)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (41,649) 433,986
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure incurred (128,238) (133,349)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,809 8,585
Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan 3,800 5,596
Short term investments made during the year - 2,195
Net cash used in investing activities (117,629) (116,973)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term financing - net (12,459) (88,762)
Proceeds from long term diminishing musharaka 16,000 -
Dividend paid (82,564) (19,596)
Proceeds / (repayments) short term borrowings - net 194,852 (81,276)
Net cash generated from from financing activities 115,829 (189,634)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (43,449) 127,379
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (740,646) (868,025)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 40 (784,095) (740,646)

The annexed notes 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Trusted Worldwide

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Reserves
Capital Revenue
Revaluation Total equity
Issued, surplus on attributable to
subscribed property, owners of the Non
and paid-up plant and Share Fair value General  Accumulated Parent controlling
capital equipment premium reserve reserve profits Company Interests Total
(Rupees in thousand)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2021
Balance as at July 01, 2020 204,597 877,100 34,086 6,457 285,000 660,188 2,067,428 11,442 2,078,870
Profit after taxation for the year - - - - - 201,822 201,822 (5,259) 196,563
Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classified as FVOCI - - - 4,761 - - 4,761 - 4,761

- Equity - accounted investee - share of OCI - - - - - 9,540 9,540 - 9,540

- Actuarial gain on staff retirement benefits - - - - - (9,172) (9,172 - 9,172)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4,761 - 202,190 206,951 (5,259) 201,692
Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property,

plant and machinery - net of tax - (28,044) - - - 28,044 - - -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Final cash dividend for the year ended

June 30, 2020 @ Rs. 1 - - - - - (20,460) (20,460) - (20,460)

- (28,044) - - - 7,584 (20,460) - (20,460)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 204,597 849,056 34,086 11,218 285,000 869,962 2,253,919 6,183 2,260,102
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2022
Profit after taxation for the year - - - - - 195,677 195,677 1,542 197,219
Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI - - - 12,713 - - 12,713 - 12,713

- Equity- accounted investee - share of OCI - - - - - - - - -

- Actuarial loss on staff retirement benefits - - - - - (12,421) (12,421 - (12,421)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 12,713 - 183,256 195,969 1,542 197,511
Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property,

plant and machinery - net of tax - (18,783) - - - 18,783 - - -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Final cash dividend for the year ended

June 30, 2021 @ Rs. 4 - - - - - (81,839) (81,839) - (81,839)

- (18,783) - - - (63,056) (81,839) - (81,839)
Balance as at June 30, 2022 204,597 830,273 34,086 23,931 285,000 990,162 2,368,049 7,725 2,375,774
The annexed notes 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1 Reporting entity information

The group comprises of the following companies:

Parent Company

- Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Subsidiary companies

- Berger DPI (Private) Limited

- Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited

Associated company

-3S Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited

1.1

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (the Parent Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as
a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was
subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company. The Parent Company is listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange (PSX). The principle business activity of the Company is manufacturing and trading of
paints, varnishes and other related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the Holding
Company. The aggregate percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered office of the Parent Company
is situated at 36-Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is located at 28-
KM Multan Road, Lahore.

The Parent Company owns 51 percent of the share capital of Berger DPI (Private) Limited who in turn
holds 100 percent share capital of the Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited. The Group is a subsidiary of
Slotrapid Limited British Virgin Islands (the Holding Company).

Following is the pertinent information related to the Holding Company:

Particulars Related information

Registered address Suit # 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street, Wickham
Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Island.

Principle officer - President / Director Vernon Emmanuel Salazar Zurita

Aggregate Percentage of holding 52.05%

Operational status Active

Auditor's opinion on latest financial statements of the Holding Company is not available as the country of
incorporation does not have any such statutory requirement.

2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

2.1

Consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiary companies as at June 30, 2022.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group 'controls' an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences
until the date on which the control ceases.
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2.2

2.3

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and the carrying values of the investments held by the Group have been eliminated against
the shareholders' equity in the subsidiary companies.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

(b) Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the
subsidiaries which are not owned by the Group. Non-controlling interest is presented as a
separate iteminthe consolidated financial statements.

NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of acquiree's identifiable net assets at the
date of acquisition. The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals to non-controlling interests
result in gains and losses for the Group and are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
orloss.

(c) Interests in equity - accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity- accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, or joint
control over the financial and operating policies. The Group’s share of its associate’s post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for:

- measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value;

- the measurement of certain items of property, plantand equipment at revalued amounts;
- recognition of employee retirement benefits at present value; and

- certain foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rs.), which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency.

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a)

b)

Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became
effective during the year but are not relevant

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Group’s annual accounting period which began on July 1,2021. However, these do not
have any significantimpact on the Group's financial statements.

Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Group's annual accounting period which began on July 1,2021. However, these do not
have any significantimpact on the Group’s financial statements.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

Standard or interpretation after)
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
— Amendments to IAS 16

Cost of Fulfilling an Onerous Contracts — Amendments to IAS 37 January 01, 2022
Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 January 01, 2022
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 January 01, 2024
Amended by Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 January 01, 2023
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

— Amendment to IAS 12

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of changes laid down by these standards on
its financial statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB in previous years. Such improvements are generally effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2022 and January 01, 2023 respectively. The Group
expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out below. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

4.1

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery,
which are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, non refundable duties and taxes
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction.
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Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to
the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment account except for a reversal of deficit already
charged to statement of profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except for a
deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus, in which case the deficit is taken to revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to the extent of
the annual incremental depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred
annually directly to accumulated profit net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is
adjusted to the revalued amount of the assets.

Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to
accumulated profits. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment account
are net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to profit or loss using
the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written off over its estimated
useful life. Residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation
is significant.

Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the
assets and other similar factors.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset
is putto use while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month preceding the disposal.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetand is recognized as anincome or expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when
incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Right-of-use asset and Lease liability

Atinception of a lease contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions.

The Group applies a practical expedient and, does not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for shortterm leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, if any. The
lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the leaseterm.

For lease contracts other than the aforementioned, the lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing
rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate and
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only
when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-to-use asset, or is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit and loss account if
the carrying amount of right-to-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which itis located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a
straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents expenditure
incurred on property, plant and equipment during the construction and installation. Cost also includes
applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant property, plant and equipment category as
and when assets are available for use as intended.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to determine
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the
respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss currently except forimpairment
loss on revalued assets, which is recognized directly against any revaluation surplus for the related asset
to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus for the
same asset.

Intangible assets

Intangibles are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The
cost of intangible comprises of its purchase price including non-refundable purchase taxes after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to acquisition. Cost
incurred after the asset is in the condition necessary for it to operate in the manner intended by
management are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Computer software

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss.

Amortization on assets with finite useful life is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
straight line basis so as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on
addition is charged from the month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as
specifiedinnote 7.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.
Subsequentto initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Impairment

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amountis the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.71

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identified impairment except for items in
transit, which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred. ltems considered obsolete are
carried at nil value. General stores and spare parts are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The Group reviews the carrying amount of stores on a regular basis and provision is made for
obsolescence ifthere is any change in usage pattern and physical form of related stores.

Stockintrade
Stockintradeis valued at lower of cost and Net Realizable Value (NRV).

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and valuation has been determined as follows:

Raw materials, packing materials and semi-processed goods Moving weighted average cost

Finished goods Moving weighted average
manufacturing cost

Finished goods purchased for resale Moving weighted average cost

Stock in transit Invoice value plus other charges

paid thereon up to the reporting date

NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is based on management's estimate and is
recognised in consolidated financial statements whenever necessary.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. An impairment allowance i.e. expected credit loss is
calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the past years. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating Expected Credit Loss (ECL). The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The impairment allowance is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of short- term running finance, cash and balances and investments
with maturities of three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insigni[Jcant risk of
changes in fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Financial instruments
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI), or through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends upon entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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The following assessments are made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
initial application:

-The determination of business model within which a financial asset is held; and

- The designation of certain financial assets with respect to subsequent measurement either
through profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Afinancial assetis measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Adebtinvestmentis measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Afinancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:
i) Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including an interest
/ markup or dividend income, are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

i) Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest / markup income, foreign
exchange gains, losses and impairment are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

i) Debtinvestments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in consolidated statement of comprehensive income are reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

iv) Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized in consolidated
statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4.7.2

4.7.3

4.7.4

4.8

4.9

4.10

Impairment
The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECL on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debtinvestments measured at FVOCI
- contract assets

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists.

Additional information about how the Group measures allowance forimpairment is detailed in note 46.1.3
ofthese consolidated financial statements.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its consolidated
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expired. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed) is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed
periodically and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group and are disclosed when inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group; or
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- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or to be received from the sale of goods,
net of sales tax, sales return and related discounts. Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of the
goods. The customers obtain control when the goods are delivered to them and have been accepted at
their premises except for exports where control is transferred at the time of dispatch Invoices are
generated at that point in time. The Group's customer arrangements contain a single performance
obligation to transfer manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Itis recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, in which case itis recognised in equity.

Currenttax

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions, ifany.

The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. Under / over
paid amount of current tax is recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / to the Government.

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognized for;

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and itis probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.
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4.15

4.15.1

4.15.2

4.15.3

4.15.4

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations under normal short-term credit terms. These are measured at the
undiscounted amount of cash to be paid.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as aresult of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates the following defined benefit schemes for employees of the Parent Company:
a) An approved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and
b) An approved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.

Pension scheme

The Parent Company offers pension benefits to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as two
percent of the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

Gratuity scheme

The Parent Company offers gratuity benefits to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to
employees having service in the Parent Company for minimum five years. The gratuity benefits provided
by the Parent Company is calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of
service and gratuity factor.

Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes
are based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses, is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The Parent Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plan are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Parent Compant
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

The actual return on plan assets represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the
beginning of the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments for contributions made by the Parent
Company as reduced by benefits paid during the year.

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund

The Group also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its Parent Company's employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Parent Company and its employees, to the fund at the
rate of ten percent of basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

Other long term benefits - Accumulated compensated absences

The Group also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the
rules of the Parent Company. The Group accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences
are earned. Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are
accumulated subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at
the time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of
an employee is ignored while determining benefit obligations.
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The Group uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of
its accumulated compensated absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to profit or loss. The
amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
immediately in the year when these occur.

Other employee benefits

The Parent Company's employees are offered interest free long term loans for purchase of vehicles. The
term of loan ranges for a period of 3-10 years. Deductions are made from salaries as per agreed
repayment schedule. The loan amount is required to be repaid immediately as the employment contract
ceases on termination or resignation of the employees. The loans are secured against title of vehicles.
These loans have been discounted at market rate.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using
the exchange rate at the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end, exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to income. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated
using the exchange rates as at the date of the initial transaction.

Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that
would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax
effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Government grants

The Group recognises benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a government
grant provided there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and Group will comply with
all attached conditions. The benefit of loan at below market rate of interest is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The
benefit is generally accounted for and presented as deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20 as a
separate line item in consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequently, the grant is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income, on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the expenses for which the grant is intended to compensate.
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5 Useof judgments and estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and
judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to Group's financial statements are:

Note
- Stock in trade 4.4
- Trade debts - unsecured 4.5
- Recoverability of deferred tax assets 413
- Long term employee benefits 415

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
6 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 6.1 1,424,867 1,430,038
Right-of-use-asset 6.2 190,071 191,636
Capital work in progress 6.3 14,182 14,367

1,629,120 1,636,041
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6.1.2 Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revalued assets would have been as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Freehold land 207,183 207,183
Leasehold land 3,475 20
Buildings on freehold land 116,407 123,324
Buildings on leasehold land 48,126 54,177
Plant and machinery 121,994 72,659

497,185 457,363

6.1.3 The forced sale value of revalued assets as per latest available revaluation reports are as follows:

Particulars Date of revaluation (Rupees in

thousand)
Freehold land June 30, 2020 569,458
Leasehold land June 30, 2020 167,166
Building on freehold land June 30, 2020 220,291
Building on leasehold land June 30, 2020 21,622
Plant and machinery June 30, 2020 193,457

6.1.4 Particulars ofimmovable fixed assets

Freehold lands of the Group are located at 28-Km, Multan Road, Lahore, measuring 92.80 Kanals and
36.10 kanals and Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore, measuring 4.04 Kanals.

Leasehold land of the Group is located at Sector I-10/3, Industrial Area, Islamabad, measuring 5.56
Kanals.

Buildings, plant and machinery and other immovable fixed assets of the Group are constructed on above
mentioned freehold land and leasehold land.

6.1.5 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 32 98.761 103.638
Selling and distribution expenses 33 22308 20.754
Administrative and general expenses 34 11.841 10.932
132,910 135,324

6.1.6 The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use is Rs. 105.05 million (2021: Rs. 107.95 million).
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2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

6.2 Right-of-use-asset
Opening net book value 191,636 197,990
Additions during the year 3,475 -
Depreciation charge for the year (5,040) (6,169)
Disposal during the year - (185)
Closing net book value 190,071 191,636
The Group has a lease contract of its warehouse as at June 30, 2022. Lease liability against the right-of-
use asset has been paid off at the start of the contract.
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
6.3 Capital work in progress
Civil works 228 _
Plant and machinery 399 3,288
Electrical installations 555 1,423
Advances to suppliers 13,000 9,656
14,182 14,367
Intangible assets
Computer software 7.1 23 211
Goodwill 7.2 - -
23 211
Computer software

This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning software.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cost
As at July 01 33,410 33,410
Additions during the year - -
As at June 30 33,410 33,410
Accumulated amortization
As at July 01 33,199 31,894
Amortization during the year 7.1 188 1,305
As at June 30 33,387 33,199
Balance as at June 30 23 211

Rate of amortization 33.33% 33.33%
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2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

711 The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Administrative and general expenses 188 1.305
188 1,305
7.2 Goodwill ) 24,000
Accumulated impairment
Accumulated impairment as at July 01 _ _
Impairment charged during the year = (24,000)
Accumulated Impairment as at June 30 _ (24,000)

Balance as at June 30 - -

All goodwill recognised at the time of acquisiton of Powder Coating Business was impaired as at June 30,
2021.

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

8 Equity - accounted investee - unlisted

Cost of investment - 3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited

98,000 (2020: 98,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 39,200 39,200

Share of profit / (loss)

As at July 01

1,128 (602)
Share of profit for the year

267 1,730

1,395 1,128
Share of other comprehensive income
As at July 01 9,540 -
Share of OCI for the year - 9,540

9,540 9,540
Less: Accumulated impairment (14,961) (14,961)
Carrying value of investment as at June 30 35,174 34,907

The recoverable of equity - accounted investee was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated using
adjusted net asset method. Following the impairment loss in prior year, the recoverable amount of the investment
was equal to its carrying amount.
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8.1 Summarised financial information in respect of equity - accounted investee on the basis of its separate

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are set out below:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Non current assets 79,509 81,788
Current assets 41,597 49,555
Non current liabilities (10,635) (10,635)
Current liabilities (80,000) (40,781)
Net assets - 100% 80,471 79,927
Percentage ownership interest 49.00% 49.00%
Group's share of net assets 39,431 39,164
Goodwill 9,860 9,860
Other adjustment 844 844
50,135 49,868
Accumulated impairment of the investment (14,961) (14,961)
Carrying amount of interest in associated company 35,174 34,907
Revenue 33,087 44,310
Profit for the year from operations 544 3,530
Other comprehensive income - 19,470
Group's share of income - post acquisition 10,935 10,668
9 Long term investment - FVOCI
Investment in equity instrument classified as FVOCI 33,458 15,048
33,458 15,048
Buxly Paints Limited - listed
Cost 3,830 3,830
Fair value adjustment 9.1 29,628 11,218
33,458 15,048

The Parent Company owns 273,600 (2021: 273,600) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 19.00%
(2021: 19.00%) investment of total shares in Buxly Paints Limited. As at year end, the market value of each share was

Rs. 122.29 (2021: Rs. 55).



162 | BERGER3PAINTS - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

10

11

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
9.1 Fair value adjustment
As at July 01 11,218 6,457
Fair value gain 18,410 4,761
As at June 30 29,628 11,218
Long term loans
Opening balance 67,577 48,053
Disbursements during the year 24,378 44,119
Repayments during the year (22,254) (24,595)
69,701 67,577
Discounting adjustment for recognition at fair value
- deferred employee benefits 11 (17,377) (17,666)
Closing balance 52,324 49,911
Current portion shown under current assets 15 (13,692) (15,764)
38,632 34,147
10.1 These representinterest free loans provided to the employees of the Parent Company in accordance with

the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles. These loans are
secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of the Company till final settlement. The
loans are recoverable over a period of three to ten years. These loans have been discounted using
market rate as at reporting date and the corresponding discounting impact has been recognised as

prepaid employee benefits.

10.2 Directors of the Group were not given any loan during the year.

Note

Long term deposits and prepayments

Deposits - unsecured

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

- Considered good 20,761 18,753
- Considered doubtful 852 4,969
21,613 23,722
Prepaid employee benefits 10 17,377 17,666
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits 111 (852) (4,969)
11.2 38,138 36,419
11.1 Movement in allowance for doubtful deposits is as follows:

Balance as at July 01 4,969 4,969

Reversal during the year (4,117) -
Balance as at June 30 852 4,969

11.2 These include deposits given to utility companies, deposits against lease and tender deposits.



12 Deferred taxation - net

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary
differences arising in respect of
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2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

- Accelerated tax depreciation (16,851) (26,315)
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (85,257) (80,370)
- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI (5,697) -
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- Impairment allowance on financial assets 68,465 62,997
- Intangibles 5 254
- Minimum turnover tax 23,370 51,127
- Investment in related parties 1,328 -
- Provision for slow moving stock 13,160 17,007
106,328 131,385
(1,477) 24,700
121 The subsidiaries have not recogonised deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. nil (2021: Rs. 19.13 million) in
respect of deductible temporary differences.
2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

12.2 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
As at July 01 24,700 (6,833)
Recognized in profit or loss:
- Accelerated tax depreciation including
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 4,328 16,830
- (Reversal) / Charge of impairment allowance
on financial assets 5,468 (1,961)
- Minimum turnover tax (27,757) 9,127
- Investment in related parties 1,328 -
- Finance lease obligations - (489)
- Provision for slow moving stock (3,847) 8,026
(20,480) 31,533
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
- Fair value gain on investment classified as FVOCI (5,697) -
As at June 30 (1,477) 24,700
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
13 Stock in trade
Raw and packing materials
- in hand 711,306 602,301
- in transit 319,267 151,184
1,030,573 753,485
Semi processed goods 162,191 80,946
Finished goods
- Manufactured 13.1 501,776 465,057
- Trading 60,140 81,687
561,916 546,744
1,754,680 1,381,175
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks 13.2
- Raw material (47,850) (51,589)
- Semi processed goods (4,137) (4,471)
- Finished goods (74,541) (87,954)
(126,528) (144,014)
1,628,152 1,237,161
13.1 Aggregate stocks with a cost of Rs. 69.71 million (2021: Rs. 89.91 million) are being valued at net
realizable value of Rs. 61.34 million (2021: Rs. 77.26 million).
2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)
13.2 Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks
As at the beginning of year 144,014 115,787
Provision made during the year 15,502 29,247
Reversal during the year (22,668) (1,020)
Write off during the year (10,320) -
As at year end 126,528 144,014

13.3 The cost of stock in trade recognised as an expense amounted to Rs. 5,151.53 million (2021: Rs. 3,801.47

million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
14 Trade debts - unsecured
Considered good
Related parties 141 & 14.2 203,976 126,607
Others 1,633,877 1,207,212
1,837,853 1,333,819
Considered doubtful
Related parties 5,535 13,468
Others 139,117 207,648
1,982,505 1,554,935
Impairment allowance on trade debts 14.3 (177,831) (221,116)
Provision for discounts (138,588) (87,540)
Contract assets 35,008 30,298
1,701,094 1,276,577
141 Trade debts include the following amounts
due from the following related parties:
Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party 14.1.1 209,511 139,998
Dadex Eternit Limited - related party 14.1.2 - 7
14.1.3 209,511 140,075

1411 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
211.90 million (2021: Rs. 152.51 million).

14.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was nil
(2021: Rs. 0.30 million).

14.1.3  The Group has recognized impairment allowance on these balances as at June 30, 2022 amounting to
Rs. 5.54 million (2021: Rs. 5.60 million).

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)
14.2 Aging of related party balances

Considered good

Past due 0 - 30 days 50,784 43,900

Past due 31 - 60 days 52,306 28,982
Considered doubtful

Past due 61 - 90 days 52,707 15,564

Past due 91 - 120 days 53,657 51,569

Past due 121 - 180 days 57 60

Past due 181 - 364 days - -
Past due over one year - -

209,511 140,075
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
14.3 Movement in impairment allowance
Balance as at July 01 221,116 200,327
Provision for the year 18,725 21,478
Bad debts written off (62,010) (689)
Balance as at June 30 177,831 221,116
15 Loans and advances
Current portion of long term loans:
Due from employees
- secured, considered good 17,416 14,200
- considered doubtful 1,250 1,564
10 18,666 15,764
Less: Impairment allowance 15.1 (1,250) (1,564)
17,416 14,200
Advances - unsecured, considered good:
- suppliers 169,076 223,227
- emp|oyees 432 769
- others 15.2 - 8,552
169,508 232,548
186,924 246,748
15.1 Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 1,564 1,564
Reversal during the year (314) -
Balance as at June 30 1,250 1,564
15.2 The includes retention money receivable amounting to Rs. nil (2021: 7.65 million) against which an

impairment allowance of Rs. nil (2020: Rs. 4.46 million) has been recorded.
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Trade deposits
- considered good 11,492 17,716
- considered doubtful 10,515 9,716
22,007 27,432
Less: Impairment allowance 16.1 (10,515) (9,716)
11,492 17,716
Short term prepayments 15,484 13,960
26,976 31,676
16.1 Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 9716 9,716
Provision made during the year 799 -
Balance as at June 30 10,515 9,716
Other receivables
LC margin - 110,000
Receivable from related parties 171 55,651 40,430
Export rebate 12,297 12,446
Provision against export rebate (11,824) (11,824)
473 622
Accrued interest 4,306 2,378
Insurance claim receivable 2,646 6,607
Others 1,342 2,551
64,418 162,588
171 Other receivables include the following amounts
due from the following related parties:
Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party 17.141 58,612 43,811
3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited - related party  17.1.2 2,419 1,880
17.1.3 61,031 45,691
Less: Impairment allowance 173 (5,380) (5,261)
55,651 40,430

17141 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

58.77 million (2021: Rs. 43.81 million).
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17.1.2

17.1.3

17.2

17.3

Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

2.42million. (2021: Rs. 1.88 million).

This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per agreed

terms.

Aging of related party balances

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Past due 0 - 30 days 3,290 4,530
Past due 31 - 60 days 1,270 253
Past due 61 - 90 days 1,540 1,079
Past due 91 - 120 days 1,584 1,345
Past due 121 - 180 days 2,714 3,870
Past due 181 - 364 days 48,186 7,615
Past due over one year 2,447 26,999
61,031 45,691
Movement in impairment allowance is as follows:
Balance as at July 01 5,261 8,351
Provision for the year 119 .
Reversed for the year - (3,090)
Balance as at June 30 5,380 5,261

18 This represents net refunds related to taxation amounting to Rs. 222.59 million (2021: Rs. 240.24 million) due from

19

20

the Government.

Shortterminvestment

This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance is

under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carry mark-up at rates
ranging from 7% to 11.25% per annum (2021: 5.25% to 7.94% per annum). This includes Rs. 110 million which has

beenincluded in cash and cash equivalents in note 40 to these consolidated financial statements.

Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

- current accounts 223,311 45,149
Cash in hand 981 1,010
224,292 46,159




21

22

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Authorised share capital

2022

2021

(Number of shares)
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2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital
Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 12,135,798 12,135,798 121,358 121,358
fully paid up in cash
Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8,323,881 8,323,881 83,239 83,239
issued as bonus shares
20,459,679 20,459,679 204,597 204,597

211 As at June 30, 2022, the Holding Company, and its nominees hold 10,649,314 (2021: 10,649,314) voting
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 52.05% (2021: 52.05%) of the ordinary paid up capital of the

Parent Company.
21.2 There was no movementin number of shares during the year.
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Reserves
Capital reserves
Share premium reserve 221 34,086 34,086
Fair value reserve - net of tax 22.2 23,931 11,218
58,017 45,304
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and
machinery - net of tax 22.3 830,273 849,056
888,290 894,360
Revenue reserves
General reserve 285,000 285,000
Accumulated profits 990,162 869,962
1,275,162 1,154,962
2,163,452 2,049,322
22.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Group for the purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act,

2017.
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22.2 This represents fair value reserve created on investment classified as FVOCI.

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)
223 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and

machinery - net of tax

As at beginning of the year 849,056 877,100

Net amount transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
Incremental depreciation - net of tax (18,783) (28,044)

830,273 849,056

22.3.1 The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the
shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

22.3.2 The latest valuation of freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold
land and plant and machinery was carried out by Harvestor Enterprises and Company, an independent
valuer on June 30, 2020. The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar
properties / assets. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price
per square foot for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery
respectively.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
23 Long term financing - secured
Mark-up based financing from conventional banks:
JS Bank Limited 23.1 43,943 62,270
Samba Bank Limited 23.2 15,030 43,706
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 23.3 ; 45.832
National Bank of Pakistan Limited 23.4 98.551 -
157,524 151,808
Islamic mode of financing:
First Habib Modaraba 235 41,346 31,491
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 23.6 52,083 77,083
93,429 108,574
250,953 260,382
Mark-up based financing from conventional banks:
Current portion shown under current liabilities (34,980) (76,349)
Islamic mode of financing:
Current portion shown under current liabilities (32,751) (31,535)

183,222 152,498
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23.1.1

23.1.2

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

23.5.1
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JS Bank Limited

- JS Bank Limited - facility 2 23.1.1 - 6,020
- JS Bank Limited - facility 3 23.1.2 43,943 56,250
43,943 62,270

This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 8.6 million to finance 0.38MW grid pegged solar
power plant. The outstanding balance was repaid during the year. Markup was payable quarterly and
was charged at the rate of one month KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The facility was secured against an
equitable mortgage and first charge on land and building of Lahore factory of the Parent Company.

This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 63 million to finance 0.604MW grid pegged solar
power plant. The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs. 2.25 million each
ending in July 2027. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at the rate of 6% per annum. The facility
is secured against an equitable mortgage and first charge on land and building of Lahore factory of the
Parent Company.

This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 70 million. The loan is obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for payment of salaries and wages. The outstanding balance is repayable in
quarterly instalments of Rs. 4.80 million each ending in February 2023. Markup is payable quarterly and is
charged at the rate of 3% per annum. The facility is secured against a ranking charge over present and
future fixed assets of the Parent Company amounting to Rs. 94 million. The loan has been recognised at
present value using effective rate of 8.78% per annum.

This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 76.5 million. The loan was obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for payment of salaries and wages. The outstanding balance was repaid during the
year. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at fixed rate of 3% per annum. This facility was secured
against raking charge amounting to Rs. 134 million over all present and future current assets of the Parent
Company. Theloan had been recognised at present value using effective rate of 8.78% per annum.

This represents long term loan facility amounting to Rs. 100 million. The loan was obtained under SBP
refinancing scheme for Temporary Economic Refinance. The facility is repayable in quarterly instalments
of Rs. 2.8 million each ending in September 2031. Markup is payable quarterly and is charged at 3 month
Kibor plus 5% spread per annum. This facility was secured against first pari passu charge amounting to
Rs. 134 million over all present and future current assets of the Parent Company.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
First Habib Modaraba
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 1 23.5.1 4,482 11,222
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 2 235.2 - 1,363
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 3 23.5.3 2,300 2,827
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 4 23.5.4 3,927 4,617
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 5 23.55 1,363 1,631
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 6 23.5.6 4,620 5,489
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 7 23.5.7 3,636 4,342
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 8 23.5.8 7,481 -
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 9 23.5.9 3,579 -
- First Habib Modaraba - facility 10 23.5.10 9,958 -
41,346 31,491

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 15.05 million for purchase of vehicles.
The facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in July 2024. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.
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23.5.2

23.5.3

23.5.4

23.5.5

23.5.6

23.5.7

23.5.8

23.5.9

23.5.10

23.6

23.7

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 5.28 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility was repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022. Profit was payable quarterly
and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility was secured against charge
over present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset was held jointly
by the Parent Company and the lender till the facility was fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 3.39 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in June 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 5.21 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in September 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 1.795 million for purchase of vehicles.
The facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in December 2025. Profit is payable quarterly
and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge
over present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by
the Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 6.04 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in November 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 4.81 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in September 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 8.91 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in April 2026. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 3.94 million for purchase of vehicles. The
facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in October 2025. Profit is payable quarterly and
charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge over
present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by the
Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting to Rs. 10.64 million for purchase of vehicles.
The facility is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2027. Profit is payable quarterly
and charged at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The facility is secured against charge
over present and future current and fixed assets of the Parent Company. The title of asset is held jointly by
the Parent Company and the lender till the facility is fully repaid.

This represents diminishing musharika facility amounting Rs. 100 million to pay off conventional
liabilities. The facility is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in July 2024 with
a grace period of 1 year. Mark-up is payable monthly and is charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus
1.25% per annum. This facility is secured against raking charge amounting to Rs. 133 million on all
present and future current assets of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has total credit facilities of Rs. 518 million (2021: 418 million) at the year end.
Whereas the Parent Company has availed credit facilities of Rs. 518 million (2021: Rs. 418 million) and
unavailed credit facilities of nil (2021: nil) at the year end.
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Long term diminishing musharaka

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (BPPL) - Sukkuk of Rs. 500 million
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2022

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

16,000

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Parent Company issued 16 BPPL Sukuk certificates, having face value of
Rs. 1 million each aggregating to Rs. 16 million and entered into a diminishing musharaka agreement with the
investment agent, Pak Oman Investment Company (trustee on behalf of the Sukuk holders) as a co-owner of the
musharaka assets. The issue resulted in cash receipt of subscription money of Rs. 16 million. The Sukuk certificates
carry profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.5% with quarterly rental payments. These certificates are issued for a
tenure of four years and are structured in such a way that first quarterly principal repayment installment commenced
from the quarter ended September 2023. Under this arrangement the Parent Company sold the beneficial
ownership of the musharaka assets, its freehold land and building on freehold land, to the investment agent (for the
benefit of Sukuk holders) although legal title remains with the Parent Company. The overall arrangement has been
accounted for in these financial statements on the basis of substance of the transaction.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Deferred grant
Balance as at July 01 3,562 3,739
Recognised during the year 3,898 6,418
Reversed during the year (800) -
Amortization of grant during the year (3,030) (6,595)
3,630 3,562
Less: current portion of deferred grants (1,379) (2,407)
Balance as at June 30 2,251 1,155
Long term employee benefits
Defined benefit plan
Staff pension fund 26.1 41,790 40,262
Staff gratuity fund 26.1 82,734 14,096
124,524 54,358
Other long term employee benefits
Accumulating compensated absences 26.2 19,488 21,231
144,012 75,589

Defined benefit plan

As mentioned in note 4.15 the Parent Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all
its permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial
valuation was carried out at June 30, 2022. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was

used for these valuations:
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2022 2021
Valuation discount rate 13.25% 10.0%
Expected rate of increase in salaries 12.25% 9.0%
Withdrawal rates Age-Based Age-Based
(per appendix) (per appendix)
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
26.1 Statement of financial position reconciliation
2022 2021
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
(Rupees in thousand)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 101,260 111,000 98,206 89,299
Fair value of plan assets (59,471) (28,266) (57,944) (75,203)
41,789 82,734 40,262 14,096
26.1.1 Movement in defined benefit
obligation is as follows:
Obligation as at July 01 98,206 89,299 87,728 80,446
Employees' contribution not paid to
the fund by the Company 1,391 - 1,105 -
Service cost 2,107 12,282 2,941 8,828
Interest cost 9,682 8,308 7,352 6,051
Benefits paid (2,764) (12,446) (2,480) (10,212)
Remeasurement loss / (gain) (7,362) 13,557 1,560 4,186
Obligation as at June 30 101,260 111,000 98,206 89,299
26.1.2 Movement in the fair value of plan
assets is as follows:
Fair value as at July 01 57,944 75,203 54,023 39
Expected return on plan assets 5,794 5,020 4,592 3,191
Remeasurement loss (4,268) (1,958) (399) (3,027)
Company’s contribution 2,764 17,446 2,208 85,212
Fund transferreq back to the i (55,000) i i
Company during the year
Benefits paid (2,764) (12,446) (2,480) (10,212)
Fair value as at June 30 59,470 28,265 57,944 75,203
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26.1.6

Annual Report 2022 | 175

2022 2021
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
(Rupees in thousand)
Movement in net liability in the
statement of financial position
is as follows:
Net liability as at July 01 40,262 14,096 33,705 80,407
Charge for the year 5,995 15,570 5,701 11,688
Charge to other comprehensive
income during the year (3,094) 15,515 1,959 7,213
Company’s contribution (2,764) (17,446) (2,208) (85,212)
Fund transferred back to the Parent
Company during the year . 55,000 ) .
Employees' contribution deducted
but not paid to the fund 1,391 ) 1,105 )
Net liability as at June 30 41,790 82,735 40,262 14,096
Charge for the year - net
Current service cost 2,107 12,282 2,941 8,828
Interest cost 9,682 8,308 7,352 6,051
Expected return on plan assets (5,794) (5,020) (4,592) (3,191)
Loss on settlements - - - -
5,995 15,570 5,701 11,688
Actual return on plan assets 1,526 3,062 4,193 164
The charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 2,959 7,132 2,519 5,164
Selling and distribution expenses 2,428 5,852 2,145 4,398
Administrative and general expenses 608 2,585 1,037 2,126
5,995 15,569 5,701 11,688
Plan assets comprise of the following:
Collective investment schemes 39,732 25,000 39,349 75,000
Cash at bank 19,739 3,267 18,597 203
59,471 28,267 57,946 75,203
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26.1.7

26.1.8

26.1.9

26.1.10

Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of
defined benefit obligation and deficit thereonis as follows:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
As at 30 June (Rupees in thousand)
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 212,260 187,505 164,016 178,501 166,548
Fair value of plan assets (87,735) (133,147) (54,064) (51,507) (50,609)
Deficit 124,525 54,358 109,952 126,994 115,939
Experience adjustment:
Loss / (gain) on obligations 6,195 5,746 (4,810) (4,883) 1,674
Gain on plan assets 10,814 7,783 6,317 4,471 4,720

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based
on gross redemptionyields as at reporting date.

Expected expense for next year

The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending June 30, 2023 works out
toRs. 9.00 million and Rs. 26.05 million respectively.

The plans expose the Group to the actuarial risks such as:
Salaryrisks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service may be greater than that assumed in
determination of present value of defined benefits obligations. As the benefit is calculated on the final
salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount
increases as salary increase.

Mortality / withdrawal risks

The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon
beneficiaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Interest rate risks

The risk that bond interest rate may be different. A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the liability,
and vice versa.

Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date, had fluctuated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 would have been as follows:

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022

Pension Gratuity
Change Increase to Decrease to Increase to Decrease to

(Rupees in thousand)

Discount rate * 1% 85,501 119,922 101,492 121,399
Future salary + 1% 119,925 85,502 121,397 101,491

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has been
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of defined benefit obligation
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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26.1.11 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 24 years and 9 years for pension and
gratuity plans, respectively.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
26.2 Other long term employee benefits
Movement in accumulated compensated absences
Balance as at July 01 21,231 24,416
Provision during the year 26.2.2 665 2,718
Payments made during the year (2,408) (5,903)
Balance as at June 30 19,488 21,231
26.2.1 Reconciliation of present value of liability
Present value of liability as at July 01 21,231 24,416
Service cost 2,191 2,837
Interest on defined benefit liability 2,003 1,645
Benefits paid (2,408) (5,903)
Remeasurement gain (3,529) (1,764)
Present value of liability as at June 30 19,488 21,231
26.2.2 Charge for the year
Service cost 2,191 2,837
Interest on defined benefit liability 2,003 1,645
Remeasurement gain (3,529) (1,764)
665 2,718
26.2.2.1 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 305 1,201
Selling and distribution expenses 250 1,023
Administrative and general expenses 110 494
665 2,718

26.2.3 Expected expense for next year

The expected expense pertaining to accumulated compensated absences for the year ending June 30,
2023 works outto Rs. 4.86 million.

26.2.4  Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date, had fluctuated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 would have been as follows:

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30,2022

Defined benefit obligation
Change Increase to Decrease to

Discount rate + 1% 17,818 21,313

Future salary + 1% 21,313 17,818
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The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has been
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of defined benefit obligation
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

26.2.5 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9 years.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
27 Trade and other payables
Trade and other creditors 954,763 910,622
Import bills payable 402,462 324,246
Contract liabilities 50,236 45,269
Accrued expenses 81,644 64,750
Provision for infrastructure cess 271 96,087 88,097
Royalty payable to related parties 27.2 48,210 23,247
Technical fee payable 40,299 34,953
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 27.3 17,920 18,588
Workers' Welfare Fund 19,511 23,059
Due to statutory authorities 27.4 18,654 16,965
Others 44,026 44,150
1,773,812 1,593,946
271 Provision for infrastructure cess
Balance as at July 01 88,097 80,860
Provision for the year 7,990 7,237
Balance as at June 30 96,087 88,097
27.2 This includes amount due to the following related parties:
Slotrapid Limited - Holding Company 48,178 23,215
Buxly Paints Limited - Associated Company 32 32
48,210 23,247
27.3 Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Balance as at July 01 18,588 18,943
Allocation for the year 13,137 14,467
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 360 304
32,085 33,714
Payments during the year (14,165) (15,126)
Balance as at June 30 17,920 18,588

Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Profit Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

27.4 This includes payable to Provident Fund amounting to Rs. 8.59 million (2021: Rs. 2.84 million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
28 Accrued markup
Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks
Long term financing - secured 1,644 1,785
Short term financing - secured 3,128 2,103
Short term running finances - secured 33,057 18,471
37,829 22,359
Mark-up based borrowings from Islamic banks
Long term financing - secured 1,815 120
Short term financing - secured 1,115 -
Short term running finances - secured 4,539 -
45,298 22,479
29 Short term borrowings - secured
Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks
Short term financing - secured 291 92,552 60,700
Short term running finance - secured 29.2 918,399 786,805
1,010,951 847,505
Mark-up based borrowings from Islamic banks
Short term financing - secured 29.3 163,000 -
Short term running finance - secured 29.4 199,988 -
362,988 -
1,373,939 847,505

29.1

29.2

29.3

Short term financing - Conventional banks

This represents utilized amount of short term financing facilities under mark-up arrangements available
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 255 million (2021: Rs. 280 million). These facilities are
secured against ranking charge on all present and future current assets of the Parent Company. These
carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.51% and 15.41% (2021: 8.16% and 9.37%) per annum, payable
quarterly.

Short term running finances - Conventional banks

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,050 million (2021: Rs. 1,250 million). These
facilities are secured against joint pari passu charge over all the present and future current assets of the
Parent Company and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.45% and 15.31% (2021: 8.53% and
9.03%) per annum, payable quarterly.

Short term financing - Islamic banks

This represents utilized amount of short term financing facilities under mark-up arrangements available
from Islamic banks aggregating to Rs. 350 million (2021: Rs. 150 million). These facilities are secured
against joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets of the Parent Company. These
carry mark-up at rates ranging between 11.61% and 13.14% (2021: nil) per annum, payable quarterly.
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29.4

29.5

Short term running finances - Islamic banks

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 200 million (2021: nil). These facilities are secured
against registered charge over the current assets of the Parent Company and carry mark-up at rates
ranging between 14.62% and 15.56% (2021: nil) per annum, payable quarterly.

The Group has total credit facilities of Rs. 1,855 million (2021: 1,580 million) at the year end. Whereas the
Group has availed credit facilities of Rs. 1,855 million (2021: Rs. 1,580 million) and unavailed credit
facilities of nil (2021: nil) atthe year end.

30 Contingencies and commitments

30.1

Contingencies

The Parent Company

In 1987, the Parent Company filed a suit against an ex-distributor (Asia paints) in the Sindh High
Court (the court) for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5 million on
account of unpaid credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. However, the
distributor in return also filed a counter claim amounting to Rs. 78.15 million against the Parent
Company in the court on account of damages and compensation. The management believes on
the basis of legal advice that it has a strong case and no financial obligation is expected to arise.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The Parent Company contracted Allied Engineering for installation of solar panels and solar
systems at the factory. The process was to be completed in different phases. After the completion
of initial phase, issues were identified in the solar systems installed. The Parent Company opted
to get the solar systems installed from another vendor while inviting Allied Engineering to reach a
settlement. However, Allied Engineering wanted full execution of the contract and full payment of
the agreed amount, out of which Rs. 4 million is unpaid at the reporting date. The managementon
the basis of legal advice, believes that it has a strong case and no further financial obligation is
expectedto arise.

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) through an assessment raised sales tax demand amounting to
Rs. 39.34 million along-with penalty. Department (SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty
figures appearing in accounts including royalty receivable, royalty payable, royalty expense and
related party transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties. The Parent Company, through its
legal counsel, filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB on the grounds that
amount of sales tax is not correctly calculated and the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on Services
Act, 2011 are not applicable for the reason that the Parent Company is managing its affairs from
the province of Punjab. The Commissioner (Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18
million, against which the Parent Company had filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SRB
which is pending adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is
hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated
financial statements.

During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued show cause notices for
collection of income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this
regard, the taxation officer raised demand of Rs. 58.94 million for tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and
2017 vide various assessment orders. The Parent Company through its legal counsel filed
appeals to Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR - A) against the said orders which are still
pending adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a
favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) and Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue (DCIR), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income
tax demands amounting to Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the tax years 2014 and 2016
respectively vide two separate orders. The Parent Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
remanded the case on some issues and confirmed additions to the tune of Rs. 32.99 million and
Rs. 9.2 million for the tax year 2014 and 2016 respectively. The Parent Company through its legal
counsel had filed an appeal before ACIR which is pending adjudication. The management
believes that it has a strong arguable case and matter will be decided in favor of the Parent
Company. Hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.
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The Commissioner Appeals - |, Lahore, vide its order for tax year 2016, deleted certain additions
while remanding the case on certain issues and upheld the case on issue of contractor services
which involves revenue amounting to Rs. 10.67 million. Appeal against this order has been filed
which is pending adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is
hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated
financial statements.

During the year 2016, a notice from Punjab Revenue Authority involving an amount of Rs. 11.45
million as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 2012 to March 2015 was
issued which is under investigation / adjudication proceedings and no demand is raised. The
management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence
no provision has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

Additional Commissioner Enforcement of Punjab Revenue Authority issued assessment order
creating demand of Rs. 132 million under various section of Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act
2012. However, the Parent Company through its legal counsel filed appeal before Commissioner
Appeals PRA against the order of Additional Commissioner which is pending adjudication. The
management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence
no provision has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section | 22 (5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2019. The Parent Company filed an appeal against the
said order before Commissioner IR Appeals-l, Lahore who remanded back the case in respect of
certain issues to the tune of Rs. 22.81 million which is pending adjudication, deleted certain
additions and upheld the disallowance of initial allowance claimed amounting to Rs. 1.7 million.
The Parent Company has filed appeal before ATIR against this disallowance which is pending
adjudication. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful for a favorable
outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

DCIR raised a demand amounting to Rs. 10.5 million in relation to sales tax on sales of scrap
stock burnt in fire in 2008 which was upheld by Commissioner Appeals. This demand was later
reduced by Appellate Tribunal up to the demand pertaining to sales tax on fixed assets. The
Parent Company being aggrieved by the order of ATIR, filed an appeal before honorable Lahore
high court which was remanded back to the ATIR and is pending adjudication. The management
on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision
has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

The DCIR passed order under section 161(1) for tax year 2014 and raised a demand amounting
to Rs. 33.5 million. The Parent Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals). The Appeals remanded back the case to the department for further
assessment. Currently, no demand is in field against the Parent Company.

Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 11.401
million are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of
a favorable outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

There are no contingencies at year end. (2020: nil).

Outstanding letters of guarantee as at June 30, 2022 amounts to Rs. 124.70 million (2021: Rs.
108.79 million).
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30.3 Commitments

- Outstanding letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounts to Rs. 967.30 million (2021: Rs. 464.38
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.

- The amount of future rentals for ljarah financing and the period in which these payments will
become due are as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Not later than one year 1,698 4,629
Later than one year and not later than five years - 1,647
1,698 6,276

31 Revenue from contract with customers

Local 10,832,178 8,085,440
Export 12,522 86,461
10,844,700 8,171,901
Less:
Discounts (2,131,627) (1,250,351)
Sales tax (1,587,797) (1,261,930)
(3,719,424) (2,512,281)
7,125,276 5,659,620
31.1 The Group is involved in trading of paints, varnishes and other related items. The performance obligation

is satisfied upon delivery of goods. The Group makes sales against advances as well as on credit terms.
In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within 60 to 90 days from the date of delivery of goods.

31.2 Contract balances

Contract balances primarily comprises of contract liabilities, representing advance consideration
received from customers for the purchase of products. Balance as at reporting date amounted to Rs.
50.24 million (2021: 45.3 million). Revenue recognized during the reporting period which was included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the period amounted to Rs. 45.27 million (2021: Rs. 36.22
million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
32 Cost of sales
Finished goods as at July 01 465,057 395,307
Cost of goods manufactured 32.1 5,872,878 4,513,587
Provision (reversed) / charged slowing moving finished goods (13,413) 28,753
Less: Finished goods as at June 30 (501,776) (465,057)
Consumption of finished goods purchased for resale 32.2 59,469 44,675
Cost of sales 5,882,215 4,517,265
32.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Raw and packing materials consumed 5,151,534 3,801,474
Freight and handling 237,824 210,333
Provision (reversed) / charged against raw -
and packing material (8,739) 494
Stores and spare parts consumed 7,725 6,353
Salaries, wages and other benefits 32.1.1 276,802 238,533
Travelling and conveyance 12,999 3,182
Fuel, water and power 104,373 94,294
Legal and professional 954 3,716
Rent, rates and taxes 1,171 1,088
Insurance 7,708 7,047
Repairs and maintenance 43,385 35,071
Depreciation 6.1.5 98,761 103,638
ljarah lease rentals 1,831 1,627
Printing and stationery 2,103 2,028
Communication 1,292 1,522
Others 9,734 13,603
5,954,457 4,524,003
Opening stock of semi-processed goods 80,946 71,550
Closing stock of semi-processed goods (162,191) (80,946)
Provision reversed during the year (334) (1,020)
Cost of goods manufactured 5,872,878 4,513,587

32.1.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 7.13 million (2021: Rs. 5.16 million) in respect of gratuity fund,
Rs. 2.96 million (2021: Rs. 2.52 million) in respect of pensionfund, Rs. 0.3 million (2021: Rs. 1.2 million) in
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 3.43 million (2021: Rs. 3.13 million) in respect of provident
fund contribution.
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32.2 The movement of finished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

Finished goods as at July 01 93,742 114,091
Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year 33,212 12,271
Less: Consumption of finished goods during the year (66,814) (44,675)
Finished goods as at June 30 60,140 81,687

33 Selling and distribution expenses

Salaries and other benefits 33.1 372,166 315,046
Travelling and conveyance 2,966 2,241
Rent, rates and taxes 5,122 3,123
Insurance 12,598 10,565
Fuel, water and power 9,742 5,716
Advertising and sales promotion 182,227 113,979
Technical services and royalty fee 33.2 53,523 49,059
Repairs and maintenance 2,390 2,818
Depreciation 6.1.5 22,308 20,754
ljarah lease rentals 2,264 1,672
Printing and stationery 1,334 1,886
Legal and professional 2,558 2,259
Communication 5,365 8,844
Others 8,833 14,954
683,396 552,916
33.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 5.86 million (2021: Rs. 4.39 million) in respect of gratuity fund,

Rs. 2.43 million (2021: Rs. 2.15 million) in respect of pension fund, Rs. 0.25 million (2021: Rs. 1.02
million) in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 8.05 million (2021: Rs. 6.83 million) in respect of
provident fund contribution.

33.2 This represents royalty and technical fee expense for the year;
Name and address of the party Relationship with 2022 2021
Company (Rupees in thousand)
Slotrapid Limited Licensor (the Holding

(Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street, Company)
Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin

Island.) 48,178 44,370
Oxyplast Belgium N.V. Licensor

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent — Mendonk, Belgium.) 5,345 4,682
Buxly Paints Limited Licensor (Associated

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi.) Company) - 7

53,523 49,059
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
34 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benefits 34.1 119,701 113,486
Directors' meeting fee 4,200 3,600
Travelling and conveyance 10,349 1,986
Rent, rates and taxes 2,770 4,639
Insurance 4,021 5,134
Auditors' remuneration 34.2 4,208 3,120
Fuel, water and power 5,407 2,121
Repairs and maintenance 2,409 2,703
Depreciation 6.1.5 11,841 10,932
Amortization of computer software 188 1,305
ljarah lease rentals 1,694 1,613
Printing and stationery 1,648 1,424
Legal and professional 13,178 12,021
Communication 2,973 3,253
Others 8,475 6,476

193,062 173,813
34.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 2.59 million (2021: Rs. 2.13 million) in respect of gratuity fund,

Rs. 0.61 million (2021: Rs. 1.03 million) in respect of pension fund, Rs. 0.11 million (2021: Rs. 0.49
million) in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 5.35 million (2021: Rs. 5.07 million) in respect of
provident fund contribution.
2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)
34.2 Auditors' remuneration

34.2.1 Auditors' remuneration of the Parent Company

Audit fee 2,100 2,010
Consolidation and half yearly review 900 460
Out of pocket expenses 578 350
Statutory certifications 330 -
3,908 2,820

34.2.2  Auditors' remuneration of the Subsidiary Company

Audit fee 300 300
300 2,820

35 Other operating expenses

Impairment of goodwill - 24,000
Impairment of investment in associate - 14,961
Workers' Welfare Fund 5,797 8,664
Workers' Profit Participation fund 13,137 14,467
Cost of provision of services to related party 32,018 -

Others 590 122

51,542 62,214
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)
36 Other income
Mark-up on term deposit receipts
and long term loan 36.1 5,728 7,429
Sale of scrap 31,854 23,961
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - net 4,560 4,640
Rental income and other services
charged to related parties 32,955 1,199
Export rebate 711 1,153
Insurance claim 871 -
Exchange gain - net 9,933 33,643
Amortization of deferred grant 3,030 6,595
Others 7,578 5,180
97,220 83,800
36.1 This includes interest income of Rs. 0.29 million (2021: 3.9 million) charged on receivable balance from
Buxly Paints Limited on amount which is overdue for more than 90 days.
2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)
37 Finance cost

Islamic mode of financing:

- Long term financing - secured 9,256 10,785

- Short term financing - secured 2,548 -

- Short term running finances - secured 4,539 -
16,343 10,785

Mark-up based borrowings from
conventional banks:

- Long term financing - secured 18,700 12,496
- Short term financing - secured 4,976 4,508
- Short term running finances - secured 111,740 81,017

135,416 98,021
Interest on WPPF 360 394
Bank charges 11,417 8,581

163,536 117,781
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2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

38 Taxation
Current
- for the year 98,664 138,189
- prior year (79,616) (4,906)
19,048 133,283
Deferred
- current year 36,826 (36,614)
- prior year - 5,081
55,874 101,750
38.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:
2022 2021
Applicable tax rate 29.00% 29.00%
Tax effect of:
- income under Final Tax Regime 0.05% 0.07%
- prior year adjustment -31.65% -1.80%
- permanent difference 8.38% 7.47%
- others 14.64% -0.64%
- effect of super tax 1.79% 0.00%
Average effective tax rate charged to profit or loss 22.21% 34.10%
39 Earnings per share - basic and diluted
39.1 Earning per share - basic and diluted 2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 194,135 201,822

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year

(Number of shares)

20,459,679 20,459,679

Earning per share - basic

(Rupees)

9.49 9.86

39.2 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any
instruments carrying options as at June 30, 2022, which would have an impact on earnings per share

when exercised.

40 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances
Short term investment
Short term running finance - secured

Note

20
19
29

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

224,292 46,159
110,000 -
(1,118,387) (786,805)

(784,095) (740,646)
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Trusted Worldwide
41 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives
2022 2021

Non-Executive
Chief Executive Executives Directors Chief Executive  Executives Directors

(Rupees in thousand)

Fees - - 4,200 - - 3,600
Managerial remuneration (including bonus) 14,000 59,085 = 14,000 42,473 -
Retirement and other long term benefits 15,000 42,971 - 13,636 34,159 -
House rent allowance = 20,594 = - 19,113 -
Utilities = 4,577 = - 4,247 -
Medical expenses - 5,721 - - 5,309 -
Provident Fund 1,273 4,388 - 1,273 21,070 -
30,273 137,336 4,200 28,909 126,371 3,600
Number of persons ! =0 ! ! 7 7
411 Retirement and other long term benefits include benefits provided under provident fund, gratuity,

pension and accumulated compensated absences.

41.2 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Parent Company are provided with free use of
Company cars. The approximate value of the benefitamounts to Rs. 9.40 million (2021: Rs. 5.94 million).

42 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2022
Unclaimed Long term Long term Short term
L diminishing . . . Total
dividend financing borrowing
musharaka
(Rupees in thousand)

As at June 30, 2021 7,551 - 260,382 847,505 1,115,438
Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid (82,564) - - - (82,564)
Short term borrowings - net - - - 194,852 194,852
Long term financing - net - - (12,459) - (12,459)
Long term dimishing musharaka - net - 16,000 - - 16,000
Total changes from financing cash flows (82,564) 16,000 (12,459) 194,852 115,829
Other changes
Adjustment of Government grant - - 3,030 - 3,030
Change in borrowings- net - - - 331,582 331,582
Dividend declared 81,839 - - - 81,839
Total liability related other changes 81,839 - 3,030 331,582 416,451

As at June 30, 2022 6,826 16,000 250,953 1,373,939 1,647,718
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2021
Unclaimed L.on.g.ter.m Long term Short term
. diminishing ) . . Total
dividend financing borrowing
musharaka
(Rupees in thousand)
As at June 30, 2020 6,687 - 347,881 1,051,551 1,406,119
Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid (19,596) - - - (19,596)
Proceeds / (repayments) short term borrowings - net - - - (81,276) (81,276)
Long term financing - - (87,676) - (87,676)
Total changes from financing cash flows (19,596) - (87,676) (81,276) (188,548)
Other changes
Change in borrowings - - 177 (122,770) (122,593)
Dividend declared 20,460 - - - 20,460
Total liability related other changes 20,460 - 177 (122,770) (102,133)
As at June 30, 2021 7,551 260,382 847,505 1,115,438
2022 2021
(Number of persons)
Number of employees
The Group has employed following number of persons:
- Factory employees 92 96
- Salaried employee 321 331
413 427
- Average number of employees 326 331

- Average number of factory employees 94 98
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44 Transactions with related parties

The related parties of the Group comprises of Holding Company, associated companies, directors of the Group and
also those under common directorship, key management personnel and post employment benefits plans. Amounts
due from and due to related parties, remuneration of directors and key management personnel are disclosed in the
relevant notes.

Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Name of parties, nature and basis Holding 2022 2021

Nature of transaction
of relationship Percentage

(Rupees in thousand)

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited 52.05% Royalty expense 48,178 44,371
Payment 16,801 37,500
Dividend paid 36,072 9,431

Associated

Dadex Eternit Limited - Sales - 318

(Associated Company)

3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited 49.00% Common expenditures incurred 539 836

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL") 19.95% Sales 377,340 273,668
Royalty expense - 6
Rental expense 1,812 1,812
Rental income and other services 1,200 1,200
Common expenditures incurred 13,661 16,656
Receipts / Adjustments 2,938 5,873
Toll manufacturing 31,755 27,072
Post employment benefit plans - Contribution to gratuity fund 17,446 85,212
(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund 2,764 2,208
Provident fund contribution 33,668 30,067

In addition to these transactions, the Parent Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of
warehouse on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi for a term of ten years at a nominal
monthly rent. After the aforementioned term of ten years, the Parent Company will handover the possession of the
building to BPL free of cost.
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45 Provident fund related disclosures

The Parent Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and eligible
employees. The following information is based on the un - audited financial statements of the provident fund:

(Unaudited)  (Audited)

June 30, December
2022 31, 2021

(Rupees in thousands)

Size of the fund 279,294 261,404
Cost of investments made 228,660 222,747
Percentage of investments - (% of total assets) 82% 85%
Fair value of investments 266,194 254,369
45.1 The break-up of investments is as follows:
2022 2021
Rupees in o Rupees in o
thousands %age thousands %eage
Investment in debt collective investment scheme 24,408 9% 24,509 3%
Investment in money market collective investment scheme 25,322 10% 24,278 4%
Investment in equity collective investment scheme 12,030 5% 12,192 5%
Bank balances 53,122 20% 47,209 23%
Certificate of deposits 101,250 38% 96,119 36%
Term deposit receipts 50,062 18% 50,062 29%
266,194 100% 254,369 100%

The investments out of provident fund as at June 30, 2022 have been made in accordance with the
requirements of section 218 ofthe Companies Act, 2017.
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46 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

46.1

46.1.1

46.1.2

46.1.2.1

Risk management of financial instruments

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to obtain a reasonable mix between the various sources of finance to minimize the finance related
risks to the entity.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Market risk

- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group’s risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk
management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect to changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. The Group through its training and management standards and procedures aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which employees understand their
roles and responsibilities.

The Group’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit
department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group's profit or loss or value of its holding of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable
parameters, while optimizing return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial
transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the Euro (EUR), RMB (Chinese Yuan), United States Dollar (USD) and Japanese Yen (JPY). Currently, the
Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities.
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2022 2021
(Amount in thousand)
The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:
Statement of financial position items

Trade and other payables

- Euro 21 62
-UsD 406 1,822
- RMB - 935
- JPY 387 387

Off statement of financial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

- Euro 4 -
-USD 3,139 669
-RMB - 69
- JPY - -
2022 2021
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year: (In rupees)
Rupees per Euro
Average rate for the year 201.26 188.66
Reporting date rate 213.81 188.71
Rupees per USD
Average rate for the year 181.58 163.18
Reporting date rate 204.85 158.30
Rupees per RMB
Average rate for the year 27.50 24.08
Reporting date rate 30.60 24.39
Rupees per JPY
Average rate for the year 1.47 1.50
Reporting date rate 1.50 1.43

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by one rupee against the foreign currencies with all other
variables held constant, profit after tax for the year would have been higher by the amount shown below,
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency loans.



194 | BERGER3PAINTS - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

46.1.2.2

46.1.2.3

2022 2021

(Amount in thousand)
Effect on profit or loss

- Euro 15 44
- USD 288 664
- RMB - 1,294
- JPY 275 275

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but opposite impact on
the post tax profit.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / (loss) for the year
and assets/ liabilities of the Group.

Pricerisk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is not exposed
to commodity pricerisk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity suppliers.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on the PSX. The
summary below explains the impact of increase on the Group's surplus on investment classified as
FVOCI to change in market price. The analysis is based on the assumption that the market price had
increased by 10% with all other variables held constant:

Impact on equity

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)

Buxly Paints Limited 3,346 1,505

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit after tax for the year
and assets/ liabilities of the Group.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in interest rates. Significant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed by a
mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of
financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.
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Effective rate Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
(Percentage) (Rupees in thousands)
Financial assets
Fixed rate instruments
h )
Short term investment 7% 7% 140,000 30,000
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate instruments
Long term financing - secured 5% t0 6% 3% to 6% 157,524 145,788
Floating rate instruments
Long term financing - secured 8.65% to 16.25% 7.65% to 10.33% 93,429 114,594
Short term financing - secured 8.51% to 15.41% 8.16% t0 9.37% 255,552 60,700
Short term running finance - secured 8.70% to 15.66% 8.03% to 12.94% 1,118,387 786,805
1,467,368 962,099

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Therefore, a change in profit / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for
2022.

100 bps
Decrease Increase
As at June 30, 2022 10,418 (10,418)
As at June 30, 2021 6,831 (6,831)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit after tax for the year
and assets/ liabilities of the Group. -

Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the
counterparties fail completely to perform as contracted / fail to discharge an obligation / commitment that
it has entered into with the Group. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are
engaged in similar business activities, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of a company’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.
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46.1.3.1

46.1.3.2

46.1.3.3

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

At amortised cost

Long term loans - secured 52,324 49,911
Long term deposits 20,761 18,753
Trade debts - unsecured 1,701,094 1,276,577
Trade deposits and others 11,492 20,906

Other receivables

- Receivable from related parties 55,651 40,430

- LC Margin - 110,000

- Others 8,767 12,158
64,418 162,588

Short term investment - secured 140,000 30,000
Bank balances 223,311 45,149
2,213,400 1,603,884

Concentration of credit risk

The Group identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Trade debts 1,701,094 1,276,577
Banking companies and financial institutions 363,311 185,149
Others 148,995 142,158

2,213,400 1,603,884

Trade deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables represents deposits held by government institutions and vendors. The
Group has assessed, based on historical experience, that the expected credit loss associated with these
financial assets is generally trivial. Hence, no additional allowance has been recognised in these
consolidated financial statements.

Receivable from related party

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs on receivables from related parties. Loss rates are
determined using a 'roll rate' method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency. The future recoveries from related parties are accounted for in
calculating the loss rate.

Longterm loans

Long term loans are due from employees of the Group and are secured against assets. Hence, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these loans.
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46.1.3.4 Trade debts

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs of trade debts. Loss rates are calculated using a
'roll rate' method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of
delinquency. The future recoveries from trade debtors are accounted for in calculating the loss rate.

46.1.3.5

Weighted Gross
. Loss
average loss carrying
allowance
rate amount
June 30, 2022
Past due 0 - 30 days 0.00% 730,923 -
Past due 31 - 60 days 0.99% 432,166 4,261
Past due 61 - 90 days 1.30% 240,252 3,120
Past due 91 - 120 days 3.12% 160,382 5,005
Past due 121 - 180 days 6.36% 77,900 4,952
Past due 181 - 364 days 26.60% 71,874 19,121
Past due over one year 85.46% 165,428 141,372
1,878,925 177,831
Weighted Gross
average loss carrying Loss
allowance
rate amount
June 30, 2021
Past due 0 - 30 days 1.72% 589,457 10,120
Past due 31 - 60 days 1.85% 259,817 4,813
Past due 61 - 90 days 2.61% 182,322 4,750
Past due 91 - 120 days 6.19% 112,008 6,929
Past due 121 - 180 days 9.48% 91,352 8,662
Past due 181 - 364 days 72.84% 51,076 37,204
Past due over one year 70.22% 211,661 148,638
1,497,693 221,116

Balances with banking companies

The Group held balances with banks, short term investments and LC margin amounting to Rs. 363.311
million as at June 30, 2022. These are held with banks and financial institutions counterparties, which are
rated A1to AAA, based on credit ratings from rating agencies.

Impairment on these financial assets has been measured on a 12 month expected loss basis and reflects
short term maturities of the exposure. The Group considers that these balances have low credit risk

based on the external ratings of the counterparties.

12 month probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by PACRA and VIS rating agency
for each credit rating. Loss given default (LGD) parameters generally reflect assumed recovery rates
based onrecovery rates assumed in Basel Guidelines for unsecured exposures.
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46.1.3.6

46.1.4

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Bank Balances 223,311 45,149

Short term investment 140,000 30,000

Other receivables - 110,000
363,311 185,149

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating Rating 2022 2021

Banks Shortterm Long term Agency (Rupees in thousand)
Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 19,629 19,356
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1 AA+ PACRA 181,915 9,835
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 35 985
JS Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA 30,000 30,840
Al-Barka Bank Pakistan Limited A-1 A+ VIS 6 1,812
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA - -
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA PACRA 112,550 110,540
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A-1 A+ PACRA 16,632 1,870
Samba Bank Limited AA A-1 VIS 9 -
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 2,535 9,911

363,311 185,149

The Group has not recognised an impairment allowance on bank balances during the year ended June
30,2022, as the impact was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset, or that such obligation will
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Group. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions. The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. The management aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular committed

credit limits.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022

Carrying Contractual Less than one Two to five More than five

amount cash flow year years years
Non derivative financial liabilities (Rupees in thousand)
Long term financing - secured 250,953 250,953 67,731 139,421 43,801
Long term diminishing musharaka 16,000 16,000 16,000
Trade and other payables 1,571,404 1,571,404 1,571,404
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 45,298 45,298 45,298
Short term borrowings - secured 1,373,939 1,373,939 1,373,939

3,257,594 3,257,594 3,058,372 155,421 43,801
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The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021

Contractual cash Less than one ) More than five
Two to five years

Carrying amount
ying flow year years

Non derivative financial liabilities (Rupees in thousand)

Long term financing - secured 260,382 287,012 124,796 150,624 11,592
Trade and other payables 1,401,968 1,401,968 1,401,968 -
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 22,479 22,479 22,479 -
Short term borrowings - secured 847,505 1,095,218 1,095,218 -
2,532,334 2,806,677 2,644,461 150,624 11,592

It is not expected that the cash flows on the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significant differentamount.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern and there is no
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and that
price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can
access at measurement date (Level 1)

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable)
inputs (Level 3)

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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46.3

46.4

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The Group has not disclosed the fair values of financial assets and liabilities which are for short term or
repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by
an independent valuation expert appointed by the Group. The valuation expert used a market based
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Group's land and building. The valuation was determined by
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs
used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of
sensitivity has not been presented in these consolidated financial statements.

47 Capital risk management

48

The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concernin
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the
Group monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio.

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings including
current and non-current borrowings. Total capital is calculated as 'equity' as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratios as at year end are as follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Long term loans 250,953 260,382
Short term borrowings 1,373,939 847,505
Total debt 1,624,892 1,107,887
Total equity 2,375,774 2,260,102
Total equity and debt 4,000,666 3,367,989
Gearing ratio 41:59 33:67

Restriction on title and assets pledged as security

Mortgages and charges

First

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets 2,003,000 2,003,000
Mortgage over land and building 628,171 726,000
Ranking

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets 267,000 -

Mortgage over land and building 734,000 334,000
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2022 2021
(Liters in thousand)

Production capacity

Actual production 43,793 39,653

The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 19.41 million liters (2021: 17.12 million liters) which is
used in the manufacturing of the final product.

Operating segments

50.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.
50.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 100% (2021: 99.50%) of the total revenue of the Group.
50.3 99.88% (2021: 98.94%) sales of the Group relates to customers in Pakistan.

50.4 All non-current assets of the Group as at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan.

Date of authorization for issue

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 28, 2022 by the Board of Directors
ofthe Group.

Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

The Board of Directors of the Group in its meeting held on September 28, 2022 has proposed afinal cash dividend of
Rs. 4.00 per share, for the year ended June 30, 2022 for approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to
be held on October 26, 2022.

General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Form of Proxy

The Secretary
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
36 Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore.

I/We

r/o

Being a member of Berger Pakistan Limited and a holder of

(No. of shares)

Ordinary shares as per folio number

hereby appoint

r/o

On my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday October 26, 2022 at 10:00
am at 36 -Industrial Estate Kot Lakhpat, Lahore and/or via video link and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2022.
Signature on
Rs. 5.00
Revenue
Stamp
Notes:

1. The share transfer book will remain closed from October 20, 2022 to October 26, 2022 (both days inclusive)

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. The completed proxy form must be received at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

3. Anyindividual beneficial owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this meeting must bring his/her original CNIC with him/her
to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy , a copy of shareholder's attested CNIC must be attached with the proxy
form. Representatives of Corporate members should also bring the usual documents required for such purpose.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

L
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

L
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Electronic Dividend Mandate Form
Berger Paints Pakistan Limtied

Date: / /

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall only be paid
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. SECP vide Circular No.
18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, has presently waived this condition till October 31, 2017. Any dividend payable after
this due date shall be paid in the prescribed manner only. Shareholders are requested to send their Electronic Dividend
Mandate information duly filled and signed, along with attested copy of their CNIC to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s
Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000. CDC
shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker
(participant)/CDC.

I/We hereby authorize Berger Paints Pakistan
Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the below mentioned bank account:

Name of shareholder:

Folio Number/CDC Account No.: of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Contact number of shareholder:

Title of Account:
IBAN (*):

Name of Bank:

Bank Branch:

Mailing Address of Branch:
CNIC No. (Attach attested copy):

NTN (in case of corporate entity):

Itis stated that to the best of my/our knowledge and belief, the above particulars given by me/us are true and correct; and
I/we shall keep Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its Share Registrar informed in case of any changes in the said
particulars in future.

Shareholder's Signature Date

NOTES: *Please provide complete IBAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your concerned
Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

**The shareholders who hold shares in Physical Form are requested to fill the above mentioned E-Dividend Bank
Mandate Form and send it to the Company's Share Registrar at

M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000,
Contact +9242 35916714,

E-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com
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The Company Secretary

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.
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The Company Secretary

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.
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